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For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group's turnover was
approximately HK$193,989,000 which was about 16.6% greater
than that of the last year (2006: HK$166,345,000). Net loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$7,904,000
(2006: HK$15,994,000), recording an improvement of 50.6%. The
improvement in both turnover and results was mainly due to the
Group's focus on the supply and procurement business.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

HE_TTLF-A=-1+—HLFE £T&KEHZ
EEEY5193,989,0008 T 0 REF L F416.6%
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Following the disposal of a loss-making group of subsidiaries
engaged in the toys business in August 2005, the Group has been
concentrating on the profit-making supply and procurement business.
For the year under review, the performance by the supply and
procurement business was satisfactory. It recorded a turnover
HK$193,989,000 (2006: HK$155,550,000), representing an
increase of 24.7% and a profit of HK$21,189,000, representing an
increase of 36.8% as compared to HK$15,494,000 for the last
year.

Since April 2004, the Group has been commencing its supply
and procurement business in Asia Pacific Region by formation of a
joint venture company namely as “Xin Procurement and Trading
Pte. Ltd." ("Xin Procurement”) in which the Group and Huang & Co
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ("HCSPL") own 51% and 49% equity interest
respectively. With the improvement in the economy of Southeast
Asia Region, tight cost control and the appreciation of Singapore
dollars, the Group recorded double-digit growth in both turnover
and results of the supply and procurement business in the year. In
order to strengthen the Group's investment with stable revenue-
generating power, the Group, on 22 November 2006, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to acquire from HCSPL an additional
24% equity interest in the entire issued share capital of Xin
Procurement (the “Sale Shares”) and the rights of and benefits in a
loan of S$120,000 (equivalent to HK$600,000) advanced from
HCSPL to Xin Procurement, representing 249% of the total principal
amount of the shareholders’ loans in Xin Procurement (the “Sale
Loan"). Upon completion on 28 February 2007, the Group has
75% equity interest in Xin Procurement. The management believes
that the supply and procurement business is expected to be one of
major engines for the Group's growth.

BEN_ZTRAFN\ALELEMEER I E5
BECHBRARAEERE  AEE-—EFZIRNBEAET
CHEREEER ROBEFE  HERRBELZ
RELARE - ZIAXBEIFE558193,989,0008 7T
(ZZTZ X% : 155,550,000/ 7T) * FF24.7% » W 4%
54 21,189,000/8 7T + REF 215,494,000/ 7T
F+36.80%0 °
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In the long term, Asia Pacific Region’s economic performance
remains promising and continues to have a positive effect on the
local economy. The management is confident that the supply and
procurement business will continue to be benefited from the
improving economic prospects. To strengthen the prospects of further
growth, we will continue to expand its existing operations, to look
for new investment opportunities and to diversify its business.

APPRECIATION

REMS  TARKERRDAES  ULER
AERKETKIATE - EREREHERKBRS
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Finally, on behalf of the board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders for their continual support and to all our staff their
contributions during the year.

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 July 2007
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group recorded its
turnover of HK$193,989,000 (2006: HK$166,345,000) and its loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$7,904,000
(2006: HK$15,994,000).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP'S ASSETS

HE_ZZLtF=-RA=1+—HLFE XEEH
B2 %5 A193,989,0008 L (Z T NF
166,345,000870) * MARBERIEA ARIGEIEF
%R /7,904,000 L (ZEZ5F : 15,994,0008
JT) e

FEBEECHER

Certain investment properties and prepaid land lease payments
of the Group in Mainland China with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$17,769,000 as at 31 March 2007 (2006: HK$25,565,000) were
pledged to secure bank borrowing advanced to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Eé:;?%@tifﬂ? H A5E8EEAE
17,769,000/ 7T (ZZEZ /N4 : 25,565,000/ 7T) I P
BAzE FREMERBMA L HBEREEAE - A
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In the opinion of the directors, there was no significant
contingent liabilities noted as at 31 March 2007 (2006: Nil).

PENDING LITIGATIONS

EERR ARER_ZETLF=A=+—HY
BEAIRNAB(ZTERE  E) -

MART & 2R

As at 31 March 2007, there was no pending litigations (2006:

RZZBZLF=A=+—8B  AEELEETD

Nil). RTEHZHFRD(ZZEZERF &) -
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES REBESRBBER
As at 31 March 2007, the Group's total indebtedness RZZEZ+LF=ZR=+—0 rEEZHEE (A

(representing the total interest-bearing borrowings and convertible
notes from banks and loan providers) was approximately
HK$31,615,000 (2006: HK$44,558,000) will be repayable within
one to three years. All borrowings of the Group are at fixed or
floating interest rates and mainly denominated either in Hong Kong
dollars or Renminbi or Singapore dollars. As at 31 March 2007, the
Group has current ratio of 1.00 (2006: 0.79) based on current
assets of HK$108,978,000 and current liabilities of
HK$108,642,000.

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had neither unutilised banking
facilities nor any hedging financial statements. The Group's net
current assets were HK$336,000 and its gearing ratio (total
indebtedness divided by equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company) was 0.83 as at 31 March 2007. Since there was a
negative equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$2,124,000 in the previous year, calculation of gearing ratio was
not applicable.

BITLEFREREE A EERRRRERRE) L
31 615000,%75(_? TN ¢ 44,558,000 T) AR
—E-FRNEE AEEE2HERHUNBEIZEHF
‘FH+§&EE LA/%TE%)\EM&%&)]D%EL#TE E/\_
EE+FE=A=1+—H BEREHEE108,978,000%8
TR REE[E 108,642,000 T E » REE 2 REL
EH100(ZFZTRF 1079 °
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On 30 March 2006, pursuant to the subscription agreement
entered on 15 February 2006 between the Group and Vision Century
Group Limited (“Vision Century”), the controlling shareholder of
the Company, a 1% per annum convertible note in principal amount
of HK$37,000,000 (the “Convertible Note") was issued to Vision
Century. The Convertible Note is repayable in three years or
convertible into the Company's ordinary share of HK$0.01 at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.205 each, which was subsequently
adjusted to HK$0.141 per conversion share as a result of the open
offer on 16 October 2006 as stated herein.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the Group and to
improve the Group's financial position, on 16 October 2006, the
Company effected an open offer with assured allotment of three
offer shares for every share of HK$0.01 each held by shareholders
as at 26 September 2006. The open offer resulted in the issue of
248,112,042 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company
at a price of HK$0.12 per share. Cash proceeds of approximately
HK$29,773,000, before the related expenses, were received by the
Company. For details, please refer to the Company's prospectus
dated 26 September 2006. As a result of the open offer, the
conversion price of the Convertible Note, the exercise price and
the aggregate number of the share options were adjusted
accordingly. For details, please refer to the Company's announcement
dated 20 October 2006. On 1 March 2007 and 5 March 2007, two
tranches of the Convertible Note of principal sum of HK$10,000,000
each at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.141 per share were
converted into a total of 141,843,970 shares. As at 31 March
2007, the outstanding principal sum of the Convertible Note was
HK$17,000,000.

On 22 November 2006, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement to acquire from HCSPL (i) the Sale
Shares; and (ii) the Sale Loan at an aggregate consideration of
HK$7,126,560. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular
dated 29 January 2007. Upon completion on 28 February 2007,
the Group's equity interest in Xin Procurement was increased to
75% and the consideration was satisfied by the Company issuing
HCSPL a convertible note in principal sum of HK$7,126,560 at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.17 per share (the “New Convertible
Note").

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

E B E G R IX A MW
w:ffﬁi A=+E REAEERAAF

2 ¥ J% B% 3 Vision Century Group Limited ([ Vision
CenturyJ)E"fv ERNF_RATRBIUZRBE RS
22 A][A) Vision Century# 1778 & %8 37,000,000/ 7T 2
BFE-EMNEZARRER ([FHRKREE]) - ATREK
ERAR=ZFAEBEIAIRTNTHRKREGR0.205ET
RT’*‘%K AIEECOVE L EBAR - AR AT

CHRBREEBRER T AFTATAARARE
%ﬁﬁ’n BEBRABKRMHO0141E T -

ABTHRARNEB I BRAERENEAEE 2 UK
RZEBEERNF+A+TAH KRBT
TR ZEBEERNFAAZTNERESEEERE
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#129,773,000%8 T (Rt BRI X) EBRA R FYE °
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ETHF=ZA—BR-_TETLF=ZAHB  MitAe
& B /A10,000,000/8 T 2 AR RIE B IR AER
BRESROI141EIL - Kk BE H£141,843,9708 %
e R_BEZA+F=-_A=+—"HB BEREZEzTBRK
ZIE A4 5 A17,000,00058 7T °

?Iji o

RZZEERF+—A=-+=H AEBFI—&
*ﬂ‘ﬂﬂ#mﬁzz’] + [AIHCSPLUS BE (N SHE RZ 1+ K (i) $H

m BHREAT,1265608TT - BEFE  H2H
$ _?7t$ AZ+hBZBH R_TZT
ti:ﬂ “+NBEKE - AREB R Xin Procurement
ZIRRE AN ZET75% » BRI AR A B [RHCSPLE T A
©F87,1265608 T RV FRRERSER0I7TE LA
BRER(TFHTBRRBRER]) -

FHHRERE

On 17 April 2007, HCSPL exercised its right to convert the
New Convertible Note of principal amount of HK$7,126,560 into
41,920,941 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.17 per share. The conversion resulted in
an increase in share capital and share premium account of
HK$419,000 and HK$6,707,000, respectively.

MN-ZZT+FNA++EH - HCSPLITEEER - #%
BREER0I7ET - HIAAREE7,126,5608 7T 2 #
AR EE 241,920,904 1 M EREECOIEB T ZARA
AIEAR - ZERBBERARKD & ER D BIEN
419,000 7T % 6,707,000/ I °
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On 30 April 2007 and 30 May 2007, 3,072,000 and 1,024,000
share options were exercised by the directors of the Company,
respectively, at an exercise price of HK$0.23 per share.

On 20 June 2007, the Company entered into (i) a conditional
placing agreement with Interchina Securities Limited (the "Placing
Agent”) in relation to the placing by the Placing Agent, on a best
effort basis, of the Company’s convertible notes with principal
amount up to HK$100,000,000 (the “Notes”) to independent third
parties (the “Placing Agreement”). The Notes are convertible into
new shares of the Company at initial conversion price of HK$0.28
per share. Upon exercise in full of the Notes with principal amount
of HK$100,000,000, 357,142,857 new shares will be issued,
representing 68.6% of the existing issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the Placing Agreement; and (ii) a
conditional option agreement with Vision Century to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to grant to Vision Century an
option exerciseable during the option period to subscribe for
convertible notes to be issued by the Company with principal
amount up to HK$100,000,000 (the “New Vision Century Notes")
at consideration of HK$10 (the "Option Agreement”). The terms of
the New Vision Century Notes will be identical to those of the
Notes, as disclosed above. Among other things, completion of the
Placing Agreement and the Option Agreement is inter-conditional
and subject to the approval of the Placing Agreement, the Option
Agreement and the issue of the Notes and the New Vision Century
Notes by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming special general meeting to be held on 6 August 2007.
For details, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 19 July
2007.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

NZEE+FENA=F+ER_TEZT+FERA=T
H - 3,072,00019 % 1,024,000 B ECHAR AT ES
RITEEBER023BITTITHE o

R-ZELFEXRNA-TH  ARRIG)EEPFH
BRAR (REREBD IV —EERGRERZE - A
AEURERBEREABNZEE REASER
%100,000,000/& 7T 2 AR B AR RE ([RE]) 7%
2BUE=F ([EBEHZE]) - EBRURVLTRRES
BROBBETLHEMAARNRAZHKRG - TEAEE
100,000,000/ 7T 2 RIEH 2 81T 1R - AR A ET
& $#357,142,857RF M - MERERRREE B
HH 2R AED EITIRA Z268.6% : K (ii)8 Vision
Centuryd] Y —IBERHBRERZ  BEAQFEAE
&4+ R B & F Vision Century— JE B J& # - @ Vision
CenturylR AT 7E BB IR BRI N - TTEIERAR A RBE A
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([#r&yvision CenturyR &) - REA108 T ([ 18R
ek l) o W ESCATHEER - #TAYVision CenturyZ 1K 2 1§
REERZEFER - BREREE  BEHRELRE
RERZEFRILERTESIEE  WEFKRAA
BUBRFER-_ZZELFNANBRITZAQFRRESR
RlREe LR ARERZ  BREBERBTEBERN
B Vision CenturyZZ & FAIEE - BAFE - T2
ARBIRZETLFLATNBZEK -

BE =& % B B

The Group has transactional currency exposures in United States
dollars, Singapore dollars and Malaysia Ringgit. Such exposures arise
from the Group's procurement business. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
closely monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

HUMAN RESOURCES

AEERHET MK TRFRATEZRS
R  ZEFRBRREAAEECREREY - AKHE
BRI EIMNEL TR - A - EEERYERIMNE
Rk R SR AHREEE LS HERIMNERR -

ANEIR

As at 31 March 2007, the Group employed a total of 15
employees, among which, 6 staff were based in Hong Kong and 9
were in Singapore. Apart from competitive remuneration package
offered to the employees, discretionary bonuses and share options
are granted to eligible staff based on individual performance.

R-FZLF-A=t—H AEEERZESR
BEBAA ERREEEZBE R6ARKEI K
ZBERIA - AEERAEERHEE ZHMER
oh - TREBEEAZEXRAEERBEROBIBLELR
FERHE -
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Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles/.P. Chairman and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 57. Mr. Lo joined the Company as an executive director and
the chairman of the Company in December 2000. Mr. Lo is a
Certified Practising Accountant of the CPA Australia and is an
associate member of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia.
Mr. Lo has over 31 years of professional and business experience
in financial and investment services in Australia, Hong Kong and
other Asian countries. Mr. Lo is also a director of various members
of the Group.

Mr. Yu Wai Man Company Secretary, Qualified Accountant and
member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 42. Mr. Yu joined the Company as the company secretary and
qualified accountant in December 2000 and was appointed an
executive director in April 2001. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 22 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 3 years in external
audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr. Yu has over 14 years of
financial experience in companies listed both in Hong Kong and
the United Kingdom. Mr. Yu is also a director of various members
of the Group.

Mr. Wilson Ng

Aged 35. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive director in
September 2002. Mr. Ng graduated from Santa Clara University
with a Bachelor's Degree in Chemistry and Psychology. Mr. Ng has
extensive investment experience in Southeast Asia. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Ng was primarily involved in corporate
development and business investment activities. Mr. Ng is a director
of Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Ng is also a director of Huang Worldwide Holding Limited, the
immediate holding company of Vision Century Group Limited, which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Ng is also a
director of Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Ng is the elder brother of Mr. Ng
Wee Keat.

BHEREAFHL TERFWNZESTE

575k c BEER ZZETTF T ZAMARREERH
TEERFR - BARERRMNSHMAS ZHESH
B % Financial Services Institute of Australasiaz & & o
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FHZEEMKE

25 e RAER —ZETZF+ - AMARRBERA
AMENAGERGM YR _TT-—FHAEZE
RWITEE - RELRBIFLRGHAMAGREES
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B HPBHIFINBET I 2FABES 28R - R
REBFER1AFEEREBE LT AR ZHBER - &
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£ o B £ E ¥ Santa Clara University * BB K
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Worldwide Holding LimitedZ £ % &£ £ M AR QA
=+ Z % F Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 7 E%E - &
TERERHEREZR -




XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
B oDy A = B #E B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F

DIRECTORS’
E £ E E

BIOGRAPHIES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

HITES ()

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Aged 30. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive director in
April 2003. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University with a Bachelor
of Arts Degree in Economics. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng
worked in a ship management company where he was responsible
for re-engineering the company’s structure as well as ensuring its
daily operation in a smooth and efficient way. Mr. Ng is a director
of Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Ng is also a director of Huang Worldwide Holding Limited, the
immediate holding company of Vision Century Group Limited, which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company and in which Mr. Ng is
also a director. Mr. Ng is a younger brother of Mr. Wilson Ng.

Mr. Ng Eng Leng

Aged 57. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive director in
April 2003. Mr. Ng is a member of the Marketing Institute of
Singapore and the Singapore Institute of Directors. Mr. Ng has 36
years of working experience as a senior executive with a wide
range of multi-national corporations, especially in new event
launches, marketing, research and operational management. Mr. Ng
is a director of Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BEERGgRE

3058 c RZEZ=ZFNAMARRAIHERITES ©
&£ 2% W Indiana University » BEBEKESE+ &
fI e EREMARRAR SR —HMAERRRME
B AEEMREAQAAIREE  URERAGBEERE
BIE - REBX - EEERARANERQF Xn
Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd. 2 EE - EL4E T A
KA &) E BB E Vision Century Group Limited 2 B # £
% 2 @ Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2 £% - &
5% & 78 & Vision Century Group LimitedZ £ % - &4
RERBEEEZRSE -

EEBLE

575k c BAER _EZE=ZFHAMARRE HEHT
EX -EmRAR/TMETEEREFTMKESZTHE
B -BEAANZHBEARLERRITHABEZS
FoLEARETER MWHERE HELKLEER
TEHEEEELR  -mEERKNRAMNERF Xn
Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd. 2 & % ©

BYFHTES

Mr. Wong Kwok Ti Chairman of the Audit Committee and member
of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 68. Mr. Wong joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director in August 2001. Mr. Wong is a Practising Certified
Public Account and a fellow member of both of the CPA Australia
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong has more than 42 years of financial experience. Mr. Wong is
the principal of W. Wong & Co., C.P.A..

10

BERRAEFRLZRETERFHZREEMKR

685 c BAAR —ET—F\AMARRRHEBL
FHMITES - BRETMEGE - XARMESEED
REREBEHMAGZARGE - AELEARBA2
FHHERER BLELEREBRFEHMITIEREA -
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Mr. Lau Pok Lam Member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 60. Mr. Lau joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director in April 2003. Mr. Lau is a practising Certified
Public Accountant, a fellow member of both of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Lau has over 36 years of experience
in the professional accountancy and financial fields.

Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, IvanMember of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee

Aged 47. Mr. Ko joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director in September 2004. Mr. Ko graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Business Degree and studied
a Master Degree Course in Real Estate Development at the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Ko also completed the Real Estate Finance
Program at the Wharton School and attended the School of Mortgage
Banking in United States. Mr. Ko has over 15 years of experience in
real estate development and real estate finance in both Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

ABEMELEFLZEERFTNZREEHKR

605% - BIEER —EE=FWAMARR R HEBEL
FHITEF - AELRNESHE  UAKFLARE
AEAEREAGMAGZEREE KBH LA
ARTEAMAees BANKEGERERER
EAGHEMLEEE - BIEEAABBICFIERE
At R R R

o
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance practices at all
times. The Board believes that good corporate governance helps

the Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to
enhance the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

B ([E5g)) HEENBRSKEZLEE
AER  BEEERERUPZEXEAFDRBERRE
ZHERBEARNEERZ KRR -

The Board has adopted the principles and complied all the
applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules") for the year ended 31 March 2007, except for
certain deviations as specified with considered reasons for such
deviations as explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

REBEZ-_ZZLF=A=+—HILFE XA 7
ERARETERHARSMAERDBE R LHMRA
(TEMRRD) e+ ez R EERERTR ([
All) 2 FrBER TR - T XFrREE TE B8
REAZRBETTRERIN

EENESRRS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ARREHEAETHRAME B EMETA
EFRETEFRIZFET(BRESFA) - fERA
RAEBETEFRHZTRTE - EAARAZE
EFETHEEAR  REFOEARFACEBTEE
STRIFTE 2 R E &8 -

Exg

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives, strategies,
direction and policies of the Group, the annual budget, annual and
interim results, the management structure of the Company as well
as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board has
delegated the responsibility of the day-to-day operations of the
Group to the management of the Company.

12
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The Board comprises eight Directors, five of which are executive Exed/\REFEAN ERRBRVTES
Directors, namely Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman), Mr. Yu Wai ~ BI#BBE &4 (/%) ~ REXKE SRR AE &
Man, Mr. Wilson Ng, Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Mr. Ng Eng Leng; and FEHREEREEBLE  UR -2 ABUIENTE
three are independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong 5 @ BIEBIZHALE - BIBEMAERSEBALE - AR
Kwok Tai, Mr. Lau Pok Lam and Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan. The RIEEEBYIIRNTESSERE LHRAIFE313E
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive ~ ZEH 2 FEBIHERE - KAAFL2 R EWHRFET
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to ~ 2B 3| REDBUIERTEETABILAL - E
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the FEZREFFHB(REESeREMZBR) SR EAF
independent non-executive directors to be independent in WREIEFINBZ[EERE] &R -
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules. Biographical details of the Directors (including the
relationships among members of the Board) are set out under the
section headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 9 to 11 of this
annual report.

During the year, four full board meetings were held and the FRARARBITTOREZBEETHNESH &

attendance of each director is set out as follows: EREZHBEEHINDT :
Number of

Executive Directors attendance BITES HERE

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman) 3/4 BRERE (FE) 3/4

Mr. Yu Wai Man 4/4 REXSEE 4/4

Mr. Wilson Ng 2/4 BERLEE 2/4

Mr. Ng Wee Keat 2/4 BRAELE 2/4

Mr. Ng Eng Leng 2/4 EREBTE 2/4

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 3/4 BEERLE 3/4

Mr. Lau Pok Lam 4/4 ZIBEH L& 4/4

Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan 4/4 = EELE 4/4
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF OFFICER EIERTHAR

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and STRMEXFEA2VERTE  TRETREZHZAE

chief executive officer should be separate and should not performed EBEE S © WA EH— ARBERT - M EEEITERER
by the same individual and the division of responsibilities between — EHZBEMNH TEEE R E WA ZEIIE -

the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly established

and set out in writing.

13




XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
B oDy A = B #E B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

R E 8 W &

The position of the chairman of the Board is currently held by
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles. The Company does not at present have
any officer with the title "Chief Executive Officer” but the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
have been clearly established and set out in writing. The Company
might consider appointing a chief executive officer in the event it
could locate appropriate personnel.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

EXEemIFIRUAASABTREREE - AR
AR I B AR S (1T AR R 1SR 2 (R BB AL - B /E
ﬁﬁﬁmﬁZ%faﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁM%E%ﬁﬂﬁ°

MMM EDNQBARE  ARAARERRE BT
B -
HHTES

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but shall retire from office by
rotation at least once every three years as referred to the Bye-Law
87 of the Company where provides that at each annual general
meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

SRAGRXEALVERTE  FRTESNZRIERS
EEMEH TARSEHMESR -

ARBZBYFATESTEFRRETETHRME

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 July 2005
with specific terms of reference. It comprises five members, including
two executive directors, namely Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
and Mr. Yu Wai Man, and three independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Lau Pok Lam and
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; and

2. to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

1

WERARNBZ AR ESTEREZREELT=
FHESE XN ZBEXET RE Fk%ﬁikA
FoZh— (MBS ABRTIE=ZB)2EZEH - I
?EL@T&KE 2A%H@“%EEZ$QT
EEERBEESE
EE &

FHEEe RN _SEERFLA+T=HAY - I
REBFECHESE FHNZEen TR EHEK

BRERARNRAIZMEHT %% BBBRELEE (XFE) R
REXEE  UWR=Z2BUFHNTES  DEBH%
EREMEERSEELLE -

FMEZEecETERERBENT

1. %K AEELEREEBC2BFMBR

BE UERBRIEAMABAENREF
ﬂﬂ%:%%ﬂ CRAEFERLESE X

2. BRE2REFSITHBBENLFEE &
R AE R R N EE R -
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During the year, two meetings were held and the attendance FRN - FHEEGRITTMAERE  EXEZH
of each member is set out as follows: FREFHNMT -
Number of
Members attendance BITES HERE
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman) 1/2 BHEEE () 1/2
Mr. Yu Wai Man 2/2 RIEXLAE 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 1/2 BEEHELAE 1/2
Mr. Lau Pok Lam 2/2 BB L A 2/2
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan 2/2 =EELE 2/2
The following is a summary of work performed by the ATREFNEEERFAMETIEIHRE :
Remuneration Committee during the year:
1. to determine the remuneration of the Directors; and 1. BETESHMH
2. to review the remuneration policy of the Group. 2. BAAEEZHFMBUR
NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS EER?
Currently, the Company did not have a nomination committee. B ARRAUTERIREEZEG -EF8EEH

The Directors are responsible for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship. They identify individuals suitably qualified
in terms of skill, knowledge and experience to become members
of the Board, taking into account of the then existing composition
of the Board in terms of skill, knowledge and experience and make
recommendation to the Board for approval.

AUDITORS' REMUNERAITON

BELEREZEREA EFHEZTEEFERAKEL
e - MBRERR VEABBEAEIEFENXE
FId 2t MBhERZAL LTRAEFSHEEIN
HEZSHAH -

B AT 2

For the year ended 31 March 2007, remuneration payable to
the Company's auditors, Ernst & Young, for the provision of audit
services was HK$1,020,000. During the year, HK$443,000 and
HK$400,000 were paid as remuneration to Ernst & Young and
other certified public accountant firms, respectively, for the provision
of non-audit related services to the Group.

RBEE-_ZTE+F=A=+—-BIEE ENT
KRB ZEMEKE RIS FT 41,020,000/ 7T -
EBRHBZRBZHE - RAFERN 443,000 7T
&400 000 7T Bl 2 49 T 2ok & 51 Al 5 765 AT 2 H b 34

SEENTT  (EARMANEE IR HIEEZ ARG 2 B
% o
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

EREREE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai (Chairman), Mr. Lau
Pok Lam and Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan. One of the independent
non-executive directors possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of those auditors;

2. to discuss with the external auditors before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit;;

3. to review the interim and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board;

4. to discuss problems and reservations arising from the
interim results and final audit, and any matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss; and

5. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies
and practices.

During the year, two audit committee meetings were held and
the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
Members attendance
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai (Chairman) 1/2
Mr. Lau Pok Lam 2/2
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan 2/2
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year:

1. Reviewed with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, discussed the audited financial statements
for the year 31 March 2006 and recommended them to
the Board for approval; and

2. Reviewed with the management of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
discussed the unaudited interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2006 and
recommended them to the Board for approval.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

E R E B W 5
UTABEZEERRFAMETTEZRE :

1. BEARNARERERZBMENRNEE RN
ZEHRAREN  HRBEZSTTRF=
A=+ -HAULFEZLEZMBERE - U
BTEFSUHBERZ K&

2. Eﬁﬁ’&ﬁﬁi@%ﬁ:ﬁﬁ’ilﬁﬂ%ﬁmzﬁﬁﬁ
AILED  IwBE_ZTRFAA=1TH
Jt/\1lﬂ2ﬂi%%§¢2¢iﬂﬂﬁ7ﬁ%$ﬁﬂ% I R
TEFQUHBSFMRZ -

ESHREZER

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2007.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 35 to 36 of this annual
report.

BREMFERTHEE  REKZEH
A %&ﬁ{mﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘l&Ef‘@ﬁ””%ﬁm/,ﬂﬁﬁz
PBRBE2H ARG - BW R AER 2 GG -

EEARBEEREARAIBEZE_TTLF=A
St HEFEZHBRRNEE -

ARAINEZHEA A B HRER < EEBAHNAK
FHRFEISEICEZ [BURBEIRE]A -
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

EXeRUREARAMNAEERHE_TT LS
A=+ BLEFEZEFTERENKERUBR

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the
year.

RESULTS

ARBZETEXRBRBREEZER - WEBARIZER
EBFHIRTBRERMT I8 AEBZETEEKNE
RERLE|EERRE o

ES

The Group's result for the year ended 31 March 2007 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 37 to 120.

18
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MBERBR
A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and minority NTRESEENEZEERNBRR 2 AEE
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted BARAEMRFE 2 EEREE  BERLHBRERE
from the published audited financial statements, is set out below. = Z - AP EX T ERALCEXZGTBEHRE 2 — 3
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. 7 ©

RESULTS EF
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HL%EE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
3 :3 ZEERF “TTRF —ETME “ET=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T TET FHL T

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEXRE
Revenue WA 193,989 155,550 144,687 - -
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAET/ (B8) 3,643 693 (5,807) (13,182) 57,295
Tax BB (3,553) (3,172) (1,608) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ BEKE (K2

FROM CONTINUING REERF

OPERATIONS / (EB#8) 90 (2,479) (7415) (13,182) 572295
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS EBRIEZBE%£%K
Loss for the year from ERILEZEH

discontinued operations LREEER - (7855) (1,717) (16,868) (20,388)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AEERH / (B8) 90 (10,334) (9,132) (30,050) 36,907
Attributable to: ATALEMR :

Equity holders of the Company ~ AR EE#ZEE A (7,904) (15,994) (12,047) (30,575) 36,907

Minority interests SUBR R 7,994 5,660 2,915 525 -

90 (10,334) (9,132) (30,050) 36,907
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) HEERBE (&)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS EEHEBERIEBRRES
31 March
ZA=+-H

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

ZEEtE “EERF —“ZZhE “TIEE —“T3=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TERL TEL TEL TEL

Total assets BEE 166,931 118,007 139,472 89,383 90,198
Total liabilities BERE (128,178) (110,524) (134,027) (95,696) (118,115)
Minority interests DERFER (688) (9,607) (2,395) 520 -
38,065 (2,124) 3,050 (5793) (27917)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

ME BERRBRERENE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES

AR RAEENE  BERRBREENEF

MZEBHES T

BA - -BRERTRERRE

| R RRMIE 14505 -

Details of movements in the Company's share capital, share
options and convertible notes during the year, together with the
reasons therefor, are set out in notes 29, 30 and 27 to the financial
statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

R ARTRA  BRERTREER S
HEEIAABRRS ARAMBHEME29  30%

27 °

ErBEHRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

20
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

g 5 8 B 5

BE BEORHEARALHES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the
year.

RESERVES/DEFICITS

ARAZHAEHBRARABMERFANBE - BEHK
HEARRBMEMERES o

fHE B A

Details of movements in the reserves/deficits of the Company
and of the Group during the year are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

ARBRAEEFERN 2 EE/ BHEBHFED R
HERUBRRMEI VNG REZSHRA -

A 7 Ik i e

At 31 March 2007, the Company had no reserves available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie as computed in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$46,235,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

RZZEZLF=A=+—08 BREARE-NN
—EREEFE  ARAALEAERE DR,/ XE
Mokt o AR Z B4 BB & 846,235,000
BT ABUR BORALB 2 X A DK ©

IREFRHER

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 100% of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 84%. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 339% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 10%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

REEFEAR  AEERREFPAFRAHEER
#11000% @ M AREPRIMEFRNBHERL 4% - K&
BRARHKERGFRBRBED33%  MRAEER
AlE FARRIRIBERL10%

ARRERAETMBEALNEEEMANES
ARBEBTERABSN ERAKER - RFEARERE
AEBRAREFPUAMERH ZEMNED#:

A
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DIRECTORS =3
The directors of the Company during the year were: FARRBZESTNOT :
Executive directors: HiTEE
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman) BRELEE (FE)
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE
Mr. Wilson Ng EEREE
Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEEALE
Mr. Ng Eng Leng EEBEE
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES:
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai BEEREE
Mr. Lau Pok Lam ZIEMELE
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan SEERE
In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's BEBEARNB ZAGMABNES7(1)K87QQ)MHK -

bye-laws, Mr. Yu Wai Man, Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Mr. Ko Kwong
Woon, Ivan will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of

RIE
XEE  FRFEELRSREBEEBNAFET 2R
RBEFRELWESE ENAERLBBEREL -

ARRCHKEERAREL  ENRELERSES

independence from Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Lau Pok Lam and Mr. %45 ELCFEBUERRE  BHEREARSAH
Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan and as at the date of this report still considers 31518 BB LA L °
them to be independent.
DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES ExERE

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set KRBEEREZFE  ERFRFEIZEFINH -
out on pages 9 to 11 of the annual report.
DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS EEZRBEN

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
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ExME

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders' approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

EENSBARRRBRARS LitE - HuBi &
MARAEEZERBEERE BEELKRE  URA

KEXEETE -

ESCzENES

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

SR BRI 36T R EES EFNFRER
ARBREEFAERAF - BB AR RERNE R A
FUBAKREXRBMER/RER AT MEEERX
FEEEERNESR °
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

EERROREERD ZERZR KR

As at 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

R-_EELF=A=1+—H EFRARALH
BEOEE (TR RBFRHERD (TRHRHERD)
EXVER) 2 B A RARRIR R B R BE H R B E 5D
FI2GRAB LR ARAAFEZ B MRz e SRk
B EZBRBELTRAIEFETEFRZNEETH
(MEEFA) 2REMBANGARANBTERERS
FRARAR ([BEAPT]) 2 S RABIT

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director EEns

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BHEEE
Mr. Wilson Ng BEEREE
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEEGELRE

24
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I
Juiss

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest
FERNEE  FHORERNE

Percentage of

Directly the Company's
beneficially Beneficiary issued share
owned of a trust Total capital
HART
ERITRAE
ERBEER RFRZIHA At A=l
1,024,000 - 1,024,000 0.22
1,000,000 278,392,754 279,392,754 58.86

(note 1)

(KatT)
- 278,392,754 278,392,754 58.65

(note 1)

(KatT)
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued) EERROREBROZEZRKXE (H)
Long positions in share options of the Company: RARBIEREZ TR -
Number of Percentage of the
underlying Company'’s issued
Name of director Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital
iR EARBE BT
Esps B RERME igng 4= BEAZBED L
Mr. Yu Wai Man Directly beneficially owned 1,024,000 0.22
REXSEE EEREBEESR (note 2)
(Htaz2)
Mr. Wilson Ng Directly beneficially owned 1,024,000 0.22
HEEELE EEREBEESR (note 2)
(Htaz2)
Mr. Ng Wee Keat Directly beneficially owned 1,024,000 0.22
HEEALE EEREBEESR (note 2)
(Htaz2)
Mr. Ng Eng Leng Directly beneficially owned 1,024,000 0.22
BB LA EEREBEESR (note 2)
(Btaz2)
Long positions in a convertible note of the Company: RARBIFRBRBR TR -
Number of Percentage of the
underlying Company's issued
Name of director Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital
iR EAREE BT
Esps B RERME igng 4= A=
Mr. Wilson Ng Beneficiary of a trust 120,567,375 25.40
EEESLE ErEZXEA
Mr. Ng Wee Keat Beneficiary of a trust 120,567,375 25.40
EEGLEE FERZE@mA
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

EERROREERD 2ERZR KR (H)

Notes:

Vision Century Group Limited (“Vision Century”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and ultimately owned
by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee
Keat are discretionary beneficiaries, is interested in 398,960,129
shares of the Company comprising of 278,392,754 shares and
120,567,375 underlying shares to be issued on assumption that
the convertible note in the principal amount of HK$17,000,000
as at 31 March 2007 will be converted into shares of the
Company at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.141 per
share. Further details of the convertible note are set out under
the heading “Substantial shareholders’ and other persons'’
interests in shares and underlying shares” below.

Each of the personal interests of Mr. Yu Wai Man, Mr. Wilson Ng,
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Mr. Ng Eng Leng is 1,024,000 underlying
shares in respect of share options granted by the Company.

In addition to the above, as at 31 March 2007, certain directors

have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries

held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of

complying with the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the

directors had registered an interest or short positions in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

26

BaE

1. Vision Century Group Limited ([Vision Century])
(BRABRAZBESFMK L2 AR R&EH—E
ZREAHAE MEERLEEREEHELERZ
%%%Z%%%*/\)%ﬁ?ﬁf’E%EB% 960,1290% A

NABR D 2 HES (B1E278,392, 754 Bk 1h R B2
RZEZELF=A=1+—HBZAX£%17,000,000%
T2 A RBRERGREAERBRESROI41ET
W AR M 21T 120,567,375 A8 1K) -
MREBEZE—SHBERT X EERRRA
fATRBRG RBERG 2] —& -

2. REXEE EEBRLE EEGLEREER
TESBERERBAZAAEZ D ARRRE
BENAEFT S M 2 1,024,000 HHRBE I 10 2 1B -

RZZETLF=HA=+—8  BREXF@EIH
ETEERARRAZHAENETHB AR EIEE
BAABRAELZ  BENEATAZEARRERE AR
ZIRE °

RZZEZT+F=A=1+—H BEXFEESE
O EEMER AR A B Sk E AT A B 2 R0 A
@%W¢%ﬁ@f%%&%fﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂhM%@ﬁz
BamdXe  AREBERETRZHAETMANEAR
MBS Z EmBRA o
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EERERORESZZER

Apart from the disclosures under the heading “Director’s
interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above
and the share option scheme disclosures in note 30 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

fREXTEERRO RERRD 2 EELXR ] —
B R BRSO B Bl - ANE L F A
v REREMAERE TERTEANEFHHRESAE
ZEEBIRKFFRABBBEARA RO HESM
B R MEFETETEEANZZEN : RE
ARTR - HEAERQAE - BB 2R F RRFEZNE LA
MEIIVEM L BEEFATNEAEMEEES
AR -

fERETE

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.

BRARRBEEE 2 H BHN M B RERME
30°

21




XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
B oDy A = B #E B R = =

g ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
& 5 B8 ik &
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES ITERRREMALIRRORAERG 2 ER
As at 31 March 2007, the following interests of more than 5% N-ZET+F=ZA=+—H BEZFFLTFEK
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the — fIE336/&REARARRIAFTE 2 EmE L MadsE - UT
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant RSB AN AR C B /TR A 5% L -
to Section 336 of the SFO:
Long positions: A
Percentage
of the
Number of Company's Number of
ordinary issued share underlying
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital shares held
AR Fiisia e
#A BORERME FEEBRBE BTRIEIHL RO #E
Huang Group (BVI) Limited* Through a controlled corporation 278,392,754 58.65 120,567,375*
BB
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited* Through a controlled corporation 278,392,754 58.65 120,567,375*
BB
Vision Century* Directly owned 278,392,754 58.65 120,567,375*
BEEEAR
Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick* As the trustee of a discretionary trust 278,392,754 58.65 120,567,375*
BRBEE ER—AZEETZETA
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng* As the settlor of a discretionary trust 278,392,754 58.65 120,567,375*
Bl S FR-—BR2EEIZRTA
Through a controlled corporation - - 41,920,941#
BB
Huang & Co. (Singapore) Pte. Ltd** Directly beneficially owned - - 41,920,941%*
BERERER
New Century International Pte. Ltd** Through a controlled corporation - - 41,920,941#
BB
Ms. Pea Baby** Through a controlled corporation - - 41,920,941%*
B L ** FRXEHRT
Ms. Loong Swee Choo** Through a controlled corporation - - 41,920,941%
R 3m IR 2 ¥ BB
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TERRRHEMATIRRORABRKRG 2 &S (&)

*

*k

##

Vision Century is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Huang Group
(BVI) Limited. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is under discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng is the settlor and
Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick is the trustee. Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng, Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat are
discretionary beneficiaries of the said trust.

Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ("HCSPL") is wholly-owned by
New Century International Pte. Ltd., which is owned by Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng, Ms. Pea Baby and Ms. Loong Swee Choo.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 15 February 2006
entered into between Vision Century and the Company, the
Company issued a convertible note on 30 March 2006 in the
principal amount of HK$37,000,000 (the “Note") to Vision
Century. On 1 March 2007 and 5 March 2007, two tranches of
the Note of principal sum of HK$10,000,000 each at the
conversion price of HK$0.141 per share, were converted into a
total of 141,843,970 shares being issued. As at 31 March 2007,
the outstanding principal amount of the Note was HK$17,000,000
and as at the date hereof, the maximum number of ordinary
shares of the Company to be issued in respect of the Note was
120,567,375.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 22
November 2006 entered between HCSPL and Able Market Profits
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the Company
issued a convertible note on 28 February 2007 in the principal
amount of HK$7,126,560 at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.17 per share to HCSPL. Subsequent to the balance sheet
date, on 17 April 2007, such convertible note was fully converted
into 41,920,941 ordinary shares of the Company.

*

*%

##

Vision CenturyJ5Huang Worldwide Holding Limited
ZZ2EMEBRA - iflHuang Worldwide Holding
Limited J5 B3 Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2 E# A °
Huang Group (BVI) Limited bl — B2 {24
BE - ZERGRAZIETARERBHEE M
FBEEEREETA EWBEE ERELE
REREEEORZERZZERZEA -

Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ([HCSPL]) J5
New Century International Pte. Ltd. Z & #EH +
New Century International Pte. Ltd.Jh i & BR B 52
£ BBRERTRRREKLTHE

R Vision Century EA R RN —TERF_A+
HRFIM 2 RE R - 2!& AR_ZEZRFE=/A
=+ B mVision Centuryé’*ﬁZKé 137,000,0007%
TZABBRER ([RE]) - RZZTLF=H—

AR—ZZE+LF=-ARHE MtAX2EZEAE
10,000,000 T« EHR B HBRKEFRK0.1418
TT o B A 141,843 9700 c R-TT+
F=A=1+—"H HWAEBZEBALEA
170000005%7% ~ fﬁﬁAZKi&iEH}% BRI
TZ2ERR B E B 5120,567,375K %

1/‘\ o

RIFHCSPLEE AR A &) 2 2 & I B 2 7 Able Market
Profits Limited® —ZZEXNFE+— A -+ =-HF
ZEEWE  ARAR-_TTLFE-_A=-F+N\H
r»ﬂHCSPL%’%%?Z!S@%H]26,560;%75&%21*5}%%*
RERONTETZAIRKRERE - REERE  R=
ZTLFMA+ER  ZAARERE2HEK

41,920,941 A2 ) E @A -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS'’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

FERRREMATIRROREBRG 2K (&)

There are duplication of interests of 278,392,754 ordinary
shares and 120,567,375 underlying shares in the Company among
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, Huang Worldwide Holding Limited,
Vision Century, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng and Mr. Kan Ka Chong,
Frederick; and of 41,920,941 underlying shares in the Company
among Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., New Century International
Pte. Ltd., Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, Ms. Pea Baby and Ms.
Loong Swee Choo.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, no person,
other than Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat, two directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above, had registered an interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Huang Group (BVI) Limited » Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited * Vision Century * & B3 B 5t 4 I B R 52
ZFEMER A RAF 278,392,754 BB KR X
120,567,375 HBARR (7 a8 Al —#E#E % ¢ M Huang
& Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ~ New Century International
Pte. Ltd. - BB A - BB LT RRHK L AT
B 2R RE 41,920,941 R HRI AR 10 e 25 B R — #Ht 12

RZZEZELF=ZA=+—H8 KREXHAEREZ
O WEEMAL (TEEMURNARIES - HiEmEH
R EXTEERIRN RAABRG 2 #am ko E ] —&) R®
AR ZEOEEERO P EBREE S KPEED
FI36HEBATRBEIEDTIKE °

During the year, the Company and the Group had the following
connected and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules").

(a) On 20 February 2004, the Group entered into a
shareholders’ agreement (the “Xin Procurement
Agreement”) with HCSPL, a company incorporated in
Singapore with limited liability, to form Xin Procurement &
Trading Pte. Ltd. (“Xin Procurement”), a company
incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. HCSPL is
wholly-owned by New Century International, a company
incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. New Century
International is in turn wholly-owned by the parents of
Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat, both are the executive
directors of the Company and directors of HCSPL. Pursuant
to the Xin Procurement Agreement, the Group and HCSPL
owned 51% and 49% of equity interests in Xin
Procurement, respectively.

FRARARAEECETUATAERTEH

BERy ETERAEBIRBEEABARZMARR
AlES EMRA(TEMRA) F14ARZHE T UE
E’E‘ o

@) R-ZEZME-_A-+H AEFE-HE
MO0 E M B 32 2 A BR A RIHCSPLET 32 — 17
% B 15 3% ([Xin Procurementif s |) » AL
— BRI MEFM L2 BRRQEF — Xin
Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd.([Xin
Procurement])  HCSPLJ FR — 7 ¥ i3 7
A 32 2 B BR 2 B New Century International
2 & %A - New Century International B 1 &
BREEREEELE (WUHBEQRBT
EEZNHCSPLESR) 2 RB2EHE - REXn
Procurementifs & - 7~ & B & HCSPL Rl #E A
Xin ProcurementZ 510 % 49%f% AN # 25 -
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS (continued) BEXGRBEBERS (#)

(a) (#B)

(a) (continued)

On 28 February 2007, the Group acquired an additional
24% interest in Xin Procurement and the rights of and
benefits in a shareholder's loan of S$120,000 (equivalent
to HK$618,000) from HCSPL, at a consideration of
HK$7,126,560 (the "Acquisition”). Upon completion of
the Acquisition, the Group holds 75% interest in Xin
Procurement and HCSPL holds the remaining 25% interest
therein. The consideration of the Acquisition was settled
by issuing a 1% convertible note of principal amount of
HK$7,126,560 by the Company to HCSPL.

By virtue of the interests of the parents of Mr. Wilson Ng
and Mr. Ng Wee Keat in HCSPL, the Acquisition constituted
a connected transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules, details of which have been disclosed in the
Company's circular dated 29 January 2007.

On 20 February 2004, Xin Procurement entered into a
supply agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with HCSPL
whereby Xin Procurement has been appointed as a
supplier to HCSPL for the supply of certain office
equipment and office supplies, machinery, machinery parts,
lubricating oil and bunkerage.

The contract terms have been reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company, who consider that the
transactions were: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
the business of the Group; (ii) in the interests of the
Company; and (iii) on normal commercial terms that are
fair and reasonable as far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned. By virtue of the interests of the
parents of Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat in HCSPL,
the transactions contemplated under the Supply
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules, details of which
have been disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 12
March 2004. The continuing connected transactions were
approved by independent shareholders of the Company
on the special general meeting held on 29 March 2004
with an annual cap of S§7.5 million (approximately
HK$34.5 million) for each of the three financial years
ended 31 March 2007. During the year, Xin Procurement
made sales to HCSPL amounting to HK$2,791,000.

RN_EEFE+F_A-_+NH KEEM
HCSPLU B& 7 Xin Procurement 2 28 9 24%#E %5
K B R E #120,000% 7T (A6 7 618,000/
TU) ZREMEF &= KERT,126,560% T
([WEEHE])  -RUEETETKE  A5F
#:B Xin ProcurementZ 75%## # + M HCSPLA
FAEEBRT2WEZ - WEFTBE 2 REHRAE
AR MHCSPLE TR £ 887,126,560/ 7.2 —
EEAMBREBEIAM -

ERNERRAEREERHLIEZRER
HCSPL # % - B EMHRA - WHEEIEE
KARRCBERS  BEFBEEEARRF
RZZEZ+F—A-_+NLHZBRAEE -

RZZEZWE=HF =+ H  Xin Procurement
BIHCSPLET M — i FE Wk (TR IEBE]) -
1t Xin Procurement & & & T A HCSPLE &
ETHAERERBAERM  BFEBHRE
FAz#eE  BBREH - #hRMRE 2 ftE
7 o

BHBRRELCARARAZHITESER A2
AZHTEZRAZERS()VIRAEE 2
—MEBEEBBRERET  (DVFEEARF
ZHE  R(i)TYREEREERKEIL © %
ZRFERRFABRENEBLATEE - BE
EFTRR EREEREERERBELEEL
LB AHCSPL s - RIBHE G R ETT
ZRGEUARAZHBMERS - BH#F
BERZZETNF=R+-HZARRIAK
NEE - BEBRERXFIELBARR 2B
BRERZZZTNF=ZRA =+ NARITZRE
FRIKEg LibE MBEE-TTLF=-A=
T-BLE=AMBFEFESEF2FELRA
7,500,000% 7T (4734,500,0007% 7T) ° F R -
Xin ProcurementE2 HCSPLZ $ 42,791,000
BT e
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

MEXZRGEEBRERS (#)

32

(@)

(b)

(continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set
out above and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions have complied with the
matters as set out in Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

On 30 March 2006, the Company issued a convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$37,000,000, as part
of the consideration for the release and discharge of the
Group from all of its obligations and liabilities in respect
of a loan advanced by Vision Century. Vision Century has
the right to convert the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible note into shares at any time before 29
March 2009 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.205
per conversion share, which was adjusted to HK$0.141
per conversion share to reflect the Company’s open offer
made on 16 October 2006. The convertible note carries
interest at a rate of 1% per annum, which is payable
semi-annually in arrears on 31 March and 30 September.
Vision Century converted HK$10,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 of the convertible note into ordinary
shares of the Company on 1 March 2007 and 5 March
2007, respectively. At 31 March 2007, the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible note was
HK$17,000,000.

(b)

(&)
ARRBIUFFATEZCRA LXAEZE
BRER S THEIZFHEREZXSTI()

RAEBEESERAEEBBER  (DE—R
BEKFIEAEEMETERIEERTET
B=FH 2GR R)REBERER S 2 HEW
THRBBAFAETFAEADAREEEF
L AEFRETAL o

RARZHBMEERFEREIFIFTE LT

HBIFE 14A38IKFTHE 2 EH o

RZZEZERF=ZA=1TH " ARAETAEAS
#37,000,000/8 T2 AT RIREE - (ERER
K % B 7 £ B #E Vision Centuryﬁﬁilﬁ B
7%%%2—@%%&&:%1%2 2R fE ° Vision
CentuyB R ZZEZENF=A =+ LB
AT MREBRER 2 RN BIRN S BRRE
BREBEMD0.205B TERARS + MR
BEREZERABRKRMH0I41B T wiﬂ%
RZBEEXRNF+ATANBETZARAAMH
BE - ABRRBBRRFNE— E:Hrg C AR
BE=A=+t—BRNA=THBE¥FIH
B 2 — % = Vision CentuyB R BIR —FF
+F=ZA—BLkZETLtF=-ARHER
10,000,000 7t & 10,000,000 7T 2 A] #2 f%
ZEAARBIERR R-ZTTELF=-A=
T—B HMAREEZITRREBELRAEEA
17,000,000 7T °
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BEXZRGEARERZ (R)

©

(d)

Pursuant to the Xin Procurement Agreement, HCSPL had
advanced funds to Xin Procurement as the working capital.
As at 31 March 2007, the outstanding balance owed by
Xin Procurement to HCSPL was HK$644,000. The terms
of the advance are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

During the year, HCSPL made advances of HK$2,857,000
to Xin Procurement. As at 31 March 2007, the outstanding
balance owed to HCSPL by Xin Procurement amounted
to HK$48,241,000 are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

(e) During the year, a management fee of HK$600,000 was

)

®

charged by HCSPL in respect of certain administrative
services rendered to the Group. The management fee
was determined between the Group and HCSPL.

During the year, HCSPL paid HK$1,584,000 to certain of
the Group's suppliers on behalf of the Group in respect
of its purchases of office equipment and office supplies,
machinery, machinery parts, lubricating oil and bunkerage.

During the year, Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of HCSPL, paid HK$36,206,000 to
certain of the Group's suppliers on behalf of the Group in
respect of its purchases of office equipment and office
suppliers, machinery, machinery parts, lubricating oil and
bunkerage.

Save as disclosed above, there are no transactions which would

need to be disclosed as connected and continuing connected

transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing

Rules.

(c) MR¥EXin Procurementi#i% * HCSPLRANE S T
Xin Procurementff R € BER - RZETT L
F=A=+—H  Xin Procurement# X HCSPL
ZIHKEELHA6440008TT c BEBRZ
TR E P B S R M 5225 ©

F A+ HCSPL# 2,857,000/ 7t F Xin
Procuremente R=ZET+F=A=+—H -
Xin  Procurement# X HCSPLZ % % &
48,241,000 7T * ZEHREHEER 28

(d)

(e) FA  HCSPLRRERE TFTAEE 2B TEER
HUEE I £ 600,000 7T - EAEEERA

EEEHCSPLETE °

(H TR HCSPLE AL B B A E & E il
NERAM - EE - EBWEH  EmRRE
REAEERMAEEETHER S
1,584,000/ JT °

F A - HCSPLZ 2 & M B 22 7] Huang
Procurement Pte. Ltd. St AN B BE B i A =&
BhMAERM  HEE  BEMEH - kK&
e REARERASEE THER N
36,206,000/ T °

®

fREXARBEES  BEIXZFARBELETRIZ
REERBENKERERS TURE -
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

ESERBFXEB RS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no directors
were considered to have an interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, other than
those businesses of which the directors of the Company were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company
and/or the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

REARBEAFHRABA/L EFTHERNIRE
KA EARERBETERAHERF ZEHT
BAEEDZ(EERLTARAY)  EARREFTRZEE
REEURRARAR /HAEENE 2 EBHI -

RARBRERE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

BRARAMBZARERRREZAAE R
AREAH  2RALTHBEARRZEETRALR
& P 25% o

BRERRSEE

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the
Group are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

REBEAGEEARESEFBIENMBEREN
FT38 0

BB

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 July 2007

il

LZOXKGETEEHAMERER - AREERAEE
TZBRRBFAGLRERZRENZEERALQT
ZAZBED

REEFS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B M & ¥ B0 ¥R &
BHAGELXARLAZEERR

To the shareholders of Xin Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(REREZEFTMEA LA FRAA)

We have audited the financial statements of Xin Corporation BMEEZENEITEZ120EMFRIGELE
Limited set out on pages 3 7 to 120, which comprise the ERARIMBHRE  BUHMBBRREE_ZSZTLF=A
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 3 1 March 2007, =+ —HHWGAEEBBERNAAEESR ﬁi’%ﬁi%ﬁé
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement ZHLEFENGAKER  HEAEREHR  KAR
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for EREBXZARFEGHBEMEMM THE -
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ESHUBBRRARENEL
The directors of the Company are responsible for the EXRAERBEEEEHAMOSEMNEENH

preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong K ong Financial Repor ting
Standards issued by the Hong K ong Institute of Cer tified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of Hong K ong
Companies Ordinance. T his responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

BEEANMBEARGIZRERERGLEEEM
DAMINBZEFNHHRE - ELRTRERT  BlE
MEERBEM DA RS RIIRTERR 2 BENHA
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MEAREREM  BENERRENGEE - ki

HEEM G hE -

BB EE

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our repor  t is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. W e do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this repor t.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B XM X X B ¥ &5
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued) BEENET (&)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁxaﬁ%“A%WM§%%ﬁﬁw
E’J%ﬁm%ﬂﬁ%’? ELEABRRMETREERH
YR RRITER  AMESSERTE M EMK

ﬁ%% A FEEAERERRAL -

BRI RBTRFUNEREAMBERERMESE
METEEHNNBEZER © FEE /R FBUR N B
MAE - BERFEENRFRERMEBVBERRT
AERBERBANER - EFEZERRE - 280
%ﬁﬁ%”ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁfﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
MAEES - ARFFEENEZRER - BYFHE QA
mWﬂTMMEﬂﬁﬁﬁ R BRNBRENEES
PIRAM G BRN S EERMELN G5 AR
- ARFEMBEHRROERI®RTA -

ZABEE RAMESHERERRTREEE
REMNEZS RIREER -

=R

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2007 and of the Group's result and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

25 July 2007
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other expenses
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic
— For loss for the year

— For loss from continuing operations

Diluted
— For loss for the year

— For loss from continuing operations

CONSOLIDATED
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INCOME STATEMENT
fr 8 IR 8 &€

Year ended 31 March 2007

BE-STtF=A=1—-HLFE

2007 2006
o et L
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
193,989 155,550

(168,509) (136,723)
25,480 18,827
2,080 1,431

(248) (296)

(17,499) (12,989)

(1,897) (1,660)

(4,273) (4,620)
3,643 693

(3,553) (3,172)

90 (2,479)

- (7,855)

90 (10,334)

(7,904) (15,994)
7,994 5,660

90 (10,334)

(HK3.6 centsi&l)

(HK15.1 cents/&1lll)

(HK3.6 centsi L)

(HK8.0 centsi lli)

N/ATE B

N/AT & A

N/ATE R

N/AT &

31
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

= e, = == =
f1 68 B8 =E B8 8
31 March 2007 Z=ZEZE+#=H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Goodwill

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts and bills payable
Tax payable
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings
Loan from a minority shareholder
Due to a minority shareholder
Due to a related company

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Convertible notes

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

=
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RBEE/(BE) FH
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RBAE

FRBEE
QR &

FRBEBEER

BEEFH

Notes

P 5

14
15
16
17

19
20
16

21

22
23
24
25

26
26

27

2007 2006
—BBLE _FEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx TET
163 268
20,188 21,437
6,478 _
57,953 51,521
1,970 2,073
75,869 57,691
779 728
1,105 871
29,255 5123
108,978 66,486
21,019 12,925
3,659 3,172
22,982 22495
12,079 17,884
644 1,127
48,24] 25,704
18 543
108,642 83,850
336 (17,364)
58,289 34157
19,536 26,674
38,753 7483
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
fr e B8 E B R &
3/ March 2007 Z=ZBEtF=ZHF=+—-H

2007 2006
“BELHF —ETRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHERT FET
EQUITY R
Equity/(deficiency in assets) FAREERFEA
attributable to equity holders iR
of the Company (EEKE)
Issued capital BBEITRA 29 4,747 827
Equity component of convertible notes AR F 4K 2 # &= E 2 6,035 10,344
Reserves/(deficits) i, (E4a) 31(a) 27,283 (13,295)
38,065 (2,124)
Minority interests DE R RE R 688 9,607
Total equity BB 38,753 7,483
Lo Ming Chi, Charles Yu Wai Man
HHE REX
Chairman Director
+E EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
K- R E LR
Year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FE+tF=F=+—-HIFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FAARERRARL
Equity
component
Share of convertible ~ Exchange Share
Issued  premium Contributed notesand fluctuation ~ option Accumulated Minority Total
capital  account  surplus bonds  reseve  resere losses Total interests  equity
TaERE
RE%2 E% 2
BRARE ROEEE REBR RESH RIRE BRERE ZEER At RREE 488
Notes HKF000  HKF000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKF0OO  HKFOOO  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
(note 27)
liE thn Thn TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEn  TEr
(Wi27)
At 1 April 2005 R-2TRFMA-A 16,541 59,030% -* 517 -* - (73,039)F 3,050 239 5445
Bxchange diference on BEENERL
translation of the financiel iRk
statements of foreign entites EY/ELER - - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Total income and expense for the year BN ERBAZAER
recognised direcly n equity US| - - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (159%4)  (159%4) 5660 (10334)
Tota income and expense for the year  AEEH % % - - - - 10 - (15994)  (15984) 5660 (10324)
Capitl reduction Bl Mo (15714) - 15714 - - - - - - -
Share premium cancellation THRNER 29() - (59030) 59,00 - - - - - - -
Elimination of accumulated losses RHZERE 29() - - (1659) - - - T16% - - -
Fquitysetfled share option amengements MR 4 2 BRERH - - - - - 466 - 466 - 466
Share options lapsed during the year ~ E AT 2 ER1E - - - - - 9) 9 - - -
Disposal of subsidaries HENBAR 3() - - - - - - - - 1,55 1552
Redemption of convertble bonds BB TRRES - - - (517) - - 517 - - -
Issue of convertible note RUEREE 7 - - - 0344 - - - 034 - 034
At 31 March 2006 RoZEAEZAH-R 81 30et 103 0F 4 (6B QIM) ST 4G

a0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
fr S I8 8 2 # &

Yeear ended 31 March 2007 BE-FE+tF=F=+—-HULFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAAREREARL
Equity
Share component  Exchange Share
Issued premium Contributed of convertible fluctuation ~option Accumulated Minority Total
capital  account  surplus nofes  reseve  resee losses Total  interests equity
T8REE EX k|

Bafkr ROERR RARR (B3 RDAR BREER 2WER gt EREE R
Notes  HKS00D  HKSOOO ~ HKSO0O  HKFOOD  HKSOOO ~ HKSO0O  HKEOOD  HKSO00  HKS0OO  HK§OO0

(note 27)
iR Ten Thr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TAr  TEr  TEr  TEn
(Bit27)

At 1 Apil 2006 RZEE/ EMA-A 827 - 3085 10344 10 57 (16847)  (14) 9607 7483
Bxchange diference on BERNERY

transltion of the financial BBax

statements of foreign entites EE/EREE - - - - 2399 - - 239 g74 3073
Tota income and expense for the year BN ERBRZAEE

recognised directly in equiy ISt = - - -9 - -39 4 3B
Proft/(oss) for the year rERET/ (BB) - - - - - - () (1904) 799 %
Tota income and expense for the year  AERH R B8 - - - - 2399 - (1904) (5505 8868 3,363
Acquisiton of minority nteress KESERRER - - - - - - - - (30) (30)
Diidend dedared to a A-trH HHE

minority shareholder BiRRE - = = - - - - - ()
Shares issued on an open offer BARRERARG 29(b) 2,481 2729 - - - - - 9B - 978
Conversion of convertble note RATARZE 29(c) 1418 20,106 - (53) - - - 1598 - 15933
Share options exercised during the year E17E 2 B R 29() i 602 - - - (152) - 4 - 4
Share issue expenses RiETRR 2 - (1769) - - - - - (179 - (176)
Issue of convertble note FUARER 27 - - - 1262 - - - 1262 - 1262
At 31 March 2007 RZEEtE=A=1-H 4707 46235*  308% 6035 2,409% 05% (41 38065 688 3875

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * RERERLERACEEABERPIRARERE
HK$27,283,000 (2006: deficits of HK$13,295,000) in the consolidated 27,283,000/ 7T (ZZ /N4 : EAL13,295,000/47T) ©
balance sheet.

i
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
= & H & i E &
Year ended 3| March 2007 EHE-FEtF=F=+—-HILFE
2007 2006
—EZLE —ETREF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3F FTHER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEEK 2
ACTIVITIES HeRE
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAER S (BE)
From continuing operations REFBELEES 3,643 693
From discontinued operations REERIEREED - (7,855)
Adjustments for: I EEZFHE
Finance costs Bl & B AR 6 4,273 4,649
Interest income MEWA 5 (372) (267)
Gains on disposal of items of HEME - BER&E
property, plant and equipment EAZ W= 5 (157) (23)
Equity-settled share option expenses NEREE 7 BRER 7,8 - 466
Impairment of items of property, ME - BENMKREIERB
plant and equipment 2B 7 - 3,873
Impairment of investment properties & & ¥ ¥ Z R (E 7 446 -
Write-back of provision against FEZEE
inventories o 7 - (485)
Depreciation of items of property, mE - BERRZREERB
plant and equipment ZHE 7 146 4,285
Depreciation of investment properties &K&W E I E 7 2,312 430
Recognition of prepaid land RIER i
lease payments HERIE 7 779 728
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 s 32(b) - (66)
11,070 6,428
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZRL,/ (%) 103 (824)
Increase in accounts receivable JE 5 B 3K 2 38 N (18,178) (20,540)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEH B - Re REMEK
deposits and other receivables R2ZmL/ (Em) (234) 596
Increase/(decrease) in accounts JEHEE &Eﬁﬂfz
and bills payable #m,/ O 8,094 (6,246)
Increase/(decrease) in other ﬁ‘rﬁlﬁgﬁﬁﬁ EZF B
payables and accruals 238m,/ Ckd) 402 864
Increase/(decrease) in an amount e — F*?‘L”“f FIEZ
due to a related company #n, O (525) 543
Exchange realignment BE 5 58 B (265) -

42
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
= & I & K 8 &
Year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FEtF=ZF=+—-HILFE
2007 2006
—EE2LE —ETRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Cash generated from/(used in) REEBRES, (BR)
operations ZHRe 467 (19,179)
Overseas taxes paid B8N TE (3,066) (1,608)
Net cash outflow from operating REEXBH M
activities FF (2,599) (20,787)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZ
ACTIVITIES ReERE
Interest received 2 FH & 372 267
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BELRRE
plant and equipment HH 14 (15) (481)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME  BERKRE
of property, plant and equipment HH 1B RIA 157 23
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME A A 32(b) - 2,707
Increase in time deposit TEHITF B2 38 AN 21 (1,030) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEFBZHERAS
investing activities () (516) 2,516
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING Rl EEE 2
ACTIVITIES BRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D TS 3R 29(b) 29,773 -
Proceeds from exercise of share Rl e
options FT 1S 38 29(d) 471 —
Share issue expenses Bn BT X 29 (1,765) -
Increase in trust receipt loans 15 5L IR & 2 32 A 529 -
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (4,334) (4,413)
Repayment of other loan BEHEMER (2,000) (6,500)
Repayment of loans from the EEERERARREMR
immediate holding company ZEX - (3,150)
Drawdown of a loan from a director RR—HKRBARZ
of a subsidiary —fESFREZER - 4,650
Increase in an amount due to JE < — i D BUAR 3R 5K IE
a minority shareholder Z 0 4,780 13,061
Redemption of convertible bonds FEE AR EH - (2,167)
Interest paid ERFE (1,237) (2,097)

a3
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

=

fr 8 R E i 8 &

Year ended 31 March 2007 BEZE-BE+tF=F=+—HLFE

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

RMEEB RERAS
(i) FH

REeERASEEN2EM/
(M) F8

FNzRe kA FEY

[ERgs s
BB

FRBELR
BEeEEY

RERASEEYER
W
e RRITHER

21

2007 2006
—BBLE —BERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TET
26,217 (616)
23,102 (18,887)
5,123 24,000

- 10

28,225 5,123
28,225 5,123
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BALANCE SHEET
S E B F &
31 March 2007 =ZBZt#=H=1+-H
2007 2006
—EELHF BT RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTET "fﬁﬁ
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKRE 14 9 12
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR 2 KE 18 - =
Total non-current assets FERBEEBLE 9 12
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from a subsidiary & L — F'EJ P 8 18 8,114 -
Prepayments, deposits and FART K hzﬁ&
other receivables EMJE%ZEEM 357 231
Cash and bank balances Be RIBTERS 24,827 796
Total current assets MENE E B 33,298 1,027
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBAE
Other payables and accruals H A & A~ R 0 K% FE 5T R 23 1,878 2,349
Interest—bearing bank AHERITERR
and other borrowings H A 18 5K 24 - 2,000
Total current liabilities RBBELRE 1,878 4,349
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) HRBEE (AfE) FE 31,420 (3,322)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEER
LIABILITIES FEEE 31,429 (3,310)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (RBEE
Convertible notes A g =% 27 19,536 26,674
Total non—current liabilities FERBBEBE 19,536 26,674
11,893 (29,984)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE,/ (8]) 8
EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS) Bz (EEEB)
Issued capital BEETRA 29 4,747 827
Equity component of convertible notes A #2 §% 2 4% 2 # 75 210 6,035 10,344
Reserves/(deficits) /. (E#4) 31(b) 1,111 (41,155)
Total equity/(definiency in assets) B (BEEBR) B 11,893 (29,984)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles Yu Wai Man
25 B9 & REX
Chairman Director
FE -

)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl 5

31 March 2007

ZEEBtFZH=+—-H

5t

CORPORATE INFORMATION

RAEH

2.1

Xin Corporation Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda.

The Group is principally engaged in supply and procurement
business operations.

Vision Century Group Limited (“Vision Century”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the immediate
holding company of the Company. In the opinion of the
directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately held by a discretionary
trust.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1

NeReatEER AR A— AR BRETMAL
ZERRA o AR A 2 M= E AR Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

AEEZEBEBAEBRRBES -

Vision Century Group Limited ([Vision Century])
(—Fﬁﬁﬁﬁigﬁﬁﬁi%%ﬂﬁﬁiiZ@ﬂ)ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
ZEHEERRR - BEFRE 0 ARBZHEER
”7%-ﬁ€%%fﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ¢'m—ﬁA
BIEEHKEFEAE 22 F Huang Group (BVI)
Limited °

mREXE

il

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2007. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continued to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

ZEBBRRDBEEEGFAMASEMER
Eﬁﬂ‘%#&%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ(f’é‘}%ﬁﬁki&%ﬁ,ﬁlﬁ) (FEeRmEE
et ([FEGFTER])) k2B BB EEXK
MzastRAEEFRBRBGRD 2B ESRE MR
2o REMBRRIVIRESLRARERHRE - FRIE
REHRP  REVHBRRDABTZEI - AR
EORBESRROI-TZHE-

FAMBRREBBARAREZHBAREEZ -
2?t¢:ﬂ:+—ﬁ¢¢ﬁ2%ﬁﬁ%°wg
RAE|ZFAETID B A BES G 2 B

HAMBHRE  IREFTARAMBER  &H
EHIERIERLE - ARBABARRBZHAE
BERRHREHANREEARBRLE

BRI



XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
BT B A = B # B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F ]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# © M B

ZEEtLtFZHA=+—H

Rl 5

31 March 2007

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 mEEE (F)
Basis of consolidation (continued) REE%E (F)
Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders DERREREWFARNEERFAE ZIRBRER
not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the ARARMBLRRIREREEFETMG 2 ESE -
Company's subsidiaries. Acquisition of minority interests is WELHBRRERRERRHEEAR - BIA
accounted for using the parent entity extension method WEEEFENREEMEREBE CHNZHRE
whereby the difference between the consideration and the RREE -
book value of the share of the net assets is recognised as
goodwill.

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS 22 HAREEITREMBHRESEN 22 E

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

The adoption of these new and revised standards and

interpretation has had no material effect on these financial

statements.

HKAS 21 Amendment  Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease

The effect of the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs

are as follows:

(a) HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates

Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment regarding
a net investment in a foreign operation, all exchange
differences arising from a monetary item that forms part
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation are
recognised in a separate component of equity in the
consolidated financial statements irrespective of the
currency in which the monetary item is denominated.
This change has had no material impact on these financial
statements as at 31 March 2007 or 31 March 2006.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

22 HARKBEAIERMBHRSEN 2 E (8

(b) HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Amendment for financial guarantee contracts

This amendment has revised the scope of HKAS 39 to
require financial guarantee contracts issued that are not
considered insurance contracts, to be recognised initially
at fair value and to be remeasured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue. The adoption of this amendment has
had no material impact on these financial statements.

(c) HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April
2006, which provides guidance in determining whether
arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting
must be applied. This interpretation has had no material
impact on these financial statements.

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued and are relevant to the financial
statements of the Group but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment
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HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. This revised standard
will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about
the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards as
capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and the
consequences of any non-compliance.

HKAS 23 (Revised) shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009. This standard requires
an entity to capitalise all borrowing costs if they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. The choice to immediately recognise such
costs as an expense is eliminated.

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007. This standard requires disclosures that
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group's financial instruments and the nature
and extent of risks arising from those financial instruments.

HKFRS 8 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. This standard requires an entity to report
financial and descriptive information about its reportable
segments. Reportable segments are operating segments or
aggregations of operating segments that meet specified criteria.
Operating segments are components of an entity about which
separate financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by chief operating decision maker in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally,
financial information is required to be reported on the same
basis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment
performance and deciding how to allocate resources to
operating segments.
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

2.3

CEMEHSRERZEBMBRELER 2
g (#)

2.4

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 shall be
applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006,
1 June 2006 and 1 November 2006, respectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption of
HKAS 1 Amendment, HKAS 23 and HKFRS 7 may result in
new or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs
should not have any significant impact on the Group's results
of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.4

pill
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries are
included in the Company's income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company's investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of minority interests
represents the difference between the consideration and the
book value of the share of the net assets acquired at the date
of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.
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Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is calculated as the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

24 TESHHEHE (&)

92

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
any individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit

of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is
related party of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life, after taking into

account its estimated residual value. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

12.5% — 15%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%

Moulds, plant and machinery

equipment and motor
vehicles
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of items of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. The
Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.

In relation to accounts receivable, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. The
carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 TESHHEHE (&)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

+  the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities, including accounts and bills payable, other
payables, interest-bearing loans and borrowings, loan from a
minority shareholder and amounts due to a minority
shareholder and a related company, are initially stated at fair
value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet,
net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible notes, the
fair value of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent non-convertible note; and this
amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option
that is recognised and included in shareholders' equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and equity components of
the convertible notes based on the allocation of proceeds to
the liability and equity components when the instruments are
first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 TESHHEHE (&)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated cost to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 TESHHEHE (&)

62

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:

«  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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Income tax (continued)

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Frig % ()

s HRHMBRARAZREELAZAMBRERKER
ME  BEEHRBEEEANERZRBAEN
] 78 5K 2R 5 [l 1% R] Bh AR FE AR A ik ) DA 3K 85
ERZESRER -

EEHRAREECREENSESGE B R - X
MENBAIEEH RSB R BRFI BT A S E 0 i
EHRBEERDBRL - HR - RERERZE
ERBREENSEEE AEHNTE - LAEATRE
RACRTGEFEA ALY BELEHBEERD
P B SR ©

BEEREBEEERBBUEERERABEFREL
HEZBERERRE  ZREERERERER
EREZHE (RBBEG)FE -

WEEREANITEARNARIBEERFH AR A
BECEN MECHALER-ERVERLF
—AUEEAR  AEEETHAEE BT
HEE -




E%;XWVt:C"?FMDFLATWDAILHMVTEI)
B Dy A = I HE B R = o

ANNUAL

REPORT 2007 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl 5

31 March 2007

ZEEBtFZH=+—-H

5t

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 TESHHEHE (&)

Bl

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.
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Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Employee benefits (continued)
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at
the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATE TESHE
Judgements #

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Impairment test of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the
event previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value, or such an event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows, which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could have a material effect on the
net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

REAASESARRBRET @ B RERE
BHRRAERIAEBUREATE LG 2E
ATERSN - B ECE LA T HIE

& E R EH H

EXT - BHEERGORESIANTEEREZENZ
BTBRFER  ARFEREERECBBITRE
HE - LERFE  (DREEBEARTEEE
BE<EN IFEEEBEILZAZTHLIF
E:QRREEREEZEG MG ARZRE
MERMBRFRBESXHRZREELEA
B URGEREEZIERRNBARESR
B BRECEREEFMRXINZERSRER
Bl e WA EERERAEERERE ZBR (B
ReRnERATRA A REIKERERER) @ A
REHRENRTERZFREELEATE -

A BF2AABREEK

TXEEEBEARZEIERRENGEE BT
AR R EMETERR  ZFHAERTEMK
FEBENHSEREERABIRAMEFLE
KAE  BRAZHRMOT -



NOTES

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
BT B A = B # B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F ]

TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl 5 ¥ &« B BE

31 March 2007 =ZBZt#=H=1+-H

ESTIMATE (continued) TESHHE (&
Estimation uncertainty (continued) A BFZTAAAEE (&)
Impairment of goodwill 2R E

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2007 was
HK$6,478,000 (2006: Nil). More details of the assessment of
impairment of goodwill are set out in note 17.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
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Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group's business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of business

segments are as follows:

Continuing operations:

« the supply and procurement segment supplies office
equipment and office supplies, machinery, machinery parts,

lubricating oil and bunkerage for vessels; and

«  the corporate and others segment consists of corporate
income and expense items and holding of property.

DBRERUMESBRITANIRE : (VAXBDHIE
REFEZHHA  R>MDAMEBESBERRESR
WA e

AREZRERGEIGHERMRAEZERE
THERERE - ARBEBEEBOBHARERME
HEMPMZEAREEHRERMEBEDETR 2
REMEEBEN - XD BEMABADT

s HERRBOIBEBR/UHERAZERE MWAE
RakEFBmERIKE  BUTH  ®aX
(Y

s BEREMNBER BRORUXEBEEA




XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
B oDy A = B #E B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F ]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl 5 ¥ &« B BE

31 March 2007 Z=EEt#=H=+-H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) DEER (F)
Discontinued operations: ERIEEEER
+  the toddler cars segment manufactures and trades s BUENEXBAREREEREEE  H

10

children’s ride-on cars featuring working horns and turning
wheels;

«  the cycling segment manufactures and trades children’s
bicycles, tricycles and scooters; and

«  the other toys segment comprises the manufacture and
the trading of pre-school toys, plastic utensils and other
fashionable toys.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenue
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers. Assets are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the assets.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers among the
business segments.

1B
MAEMER MK EE 2 BRI

e WEREEIBXHKARELRESTREES -

WEBENBERE R

AEBAREHE DB > REPHAELS S
SMBOE NREEMEHRINDEEMED

-

XD BCRABMENRHEREE -
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. HEER (#)
() Business segments (a) ¥%2 8

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for the
Group's business segments for the years ended 31 March

TRENAEBEBEZE _TERFR_TTL
FZA=ZT-HLEFEREBIBEZEA -
wA (BR)RETEE BERRAXZEA

2006 and 2007. #t o
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
i L REIEEES
Supply and Corporate &nd
procurement others Sub-tota Toddler cars Cyding Other toys Sub-otal Consolidated
KERSR i At §fig [} H L At fa
000 2006 007 006 2000 2006 000 006 007 206 2000 2006 W07 W06 2000 206
ZERLE CERIE CRME JIME CR4LE CRENE IMME OEE B4R CORNE D3R IEIE CRMR CAEEE C3ME AN
HKS000  HKS00D HK§'000  HKS00D HKS000 HKSOOO HKSO00 ~HKSOO0 HKSO00 HKSO00 HKS00 HKSOOD HKS000 HKSOOO HKS000  HKSO000
thn TEn tEn TEn tAn TEn tAn TEr tAn fir tn TEr thr TEr thn Thn
Segment revene; ARRA:
Sales to extemal customers IREF EEE 193,989 155,950 - - 193989 155550 -4 - D9 - 3h - 107% 193989 166345
Ot eince anc gas WA RN S| N 1. R R A 1 RN . SRR (N R
194334 195641 1,200 - 19553 155641 - 46 -6 - 399 1136 195534 166677
Segment resuls i E 2089 54610 SIX -G - - R - (%) 23 7668

Interet income and wnallocsed —— AEMARFAE

Tente and gans WARME %130
Unlocaed epenses ARRR (15,008) (11,521
Finence st BERA (82)  (462)
Pofoss) befre tx RRiEN/ (B8) 6
T il (353 (317
Poos) forte e KEREA/ (EE) 04

%13

- (15008 (1321

1

(1659)

(165)

)

() (460)
W (1)
(559 (1)




E%;XWVt:C"?FMDFLATWDAILHMVTEI)
B Dy A = I HE B R = o

ANNUAL

REPORT

2007

=

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl 5

31 March 2007
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5t

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. HEER (H)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥% 2% (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
i L Bhriess
Supply and Corporate and
procurement ofhers Subotel Toddlr cars Cycling Other toys Sub-ofal Consolidited
HERRE bRR&M M it 15 LU M &2
000 006 007 206 2000 2006 w07 006 2000 2006 2000 006 007 N06 2000 2006
SRR CITE B CTTE CIME CTTE CIME CTTNE D3R CIEE CIME CIEEE IR IR 8 3
HKS000  HKF000  HKS000  HKSO0D HKSO00  HKSO00 HKSO00 HKSOOO HKS00 HKF00D HKS000 HKS00D HKSO0D HKSO0D HKS000 ~HKSO00
i fhr A TAr thr TEr thn T AL Thr T TEn T TR thn Thn
Aoset and il L
Seqent set EE BT G0A0  SSIE5 S48 I13T66 112884 - - - - 137676 112864
Unelocated asses FARE BB 5B
Tl sl % 166951~ 116007
Seqment leies BEE WA BT 016 NI %6 656 - - - - - 9654 6396
Unalocated [hies AEAE T
T elts L 18178 11054
Oter egment iformation: ~—~~ EAEEH
Depteciton and recognion FEREIEN 14
of prepaid lnd lese payments fExE B9 16 30% 2000 3BT 2786 1,109 620 98 2000 381 5443
impaiment offems of popet, 115
plentand equpment b - - - - 164 892 1357 3473 - W
Impaiment of mestment propetes &85 2 68 - - W - M - - - - - - W -
Witebeck of poision agenst~ BEZBE
Inventoes 2H (485) - (485) - - - - - - ()
Fouisetled hare opton epenses JEEEE - It It - - - - - - U
ERER —
Captl emendiue LS 5% -5 % Boo- - - B 5wl

12
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. ZEEH (&)
(b) Geographical segments (b) HESE

The following tables present revenue and certain asset
and expenditure information for the Group's geographical
segments for the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006.

TRENAEBEE-_TTLER-_TTAX
FZAZ+-ALFERBESRZBRAR
ETEERIHZEH -

Group KEFH
Asia Pacific Region
(including Hong Kong
and Mainland China
but excluding
North America Europe Singapore Singapore) Consolidated
GAE(BEEER
REAE
LEM B s BREERNE) &4
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERLE CTINE ZBRLF CTINE CBRLF CTINEF CERLE CFINE DRRLF CEEIR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Téx Tér TEx  TEr TEx  TEr fEn  TEnr  TEn  TEn
Segment revene: AERA:
Seles to external customers  SAREFZHEE -4 - 648 193989 1555%0 - 3406 193989 166345
Attributable to BALBERH
discontinued operations Ef - (1,041) - (648) - - - (3406) - (1079)
Revenue from KEREEEER
continuing operations ZHA - - - - 193989 155,550 - - 193989 155550
Other segment information: £ HEEH :
Segment assets PEEE - - - - 82491 63344 84440 54663 166931 118007
Capital expenditure ES - - - - 15 29 - 185 15 481

L]
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

5t

WA~ BErAR S

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover represents the

net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns

and trade discounts during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Revenue
Sale of goods

Other income

Interest income
Rental income

Others

Gains

Gain on disposal of
items of property,
plant and equipment

[

o >
m
=

8L ON
MEBA
HEMA
£t

6

HENX  BE
AR
W

WA (TEAKREZEXB) BEFABHNKRERER
ESFMeELENHREE -

WA~ ERA RS -

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Total

REGERY BRIEEEXY ait
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZRRLE CTTRE CERLE “TIREF ZRFLE TIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL TR TEL TR THEL
193,989 155,550 - 10,795 193,989 166,345
372 267 - = 372 267
1,200 654 - = 1,200 654
351 487 - 441 351 928
1,923 1,408 - 441 1,923 1,849
157 23 - = 157 23
157 23 - = 157 23
2,080 1,431 - 441 2,080 1,872
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. MEREK
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELE —EETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Interest on: T3 ZEZFE
Bank loans and other loan ERRAFANTHESR
wholly repayable within ZIRTERK
five years HiE R 962 4,619
Convertible notes and bonds ARk EE M ES 3,311 30
4,273 4,649
Attributable to discontinued B4R | F T
operations FE1h - 29
Attributable to continuing RIZERERRE 2
operations reported FEREET
in the consolidated FEAS
income statement 4,273 4,620
4,273 4,649

19
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7.

ZEEBtFZH=+—-H

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

7. BRBADER, (BE)

16

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of items of
property, plant and
equipment (note 14)
Depreciation of investment
properties (note 15)
Recognition of prepaid
land lease payments
(note 16)
Minimum lease payments in
respect of land and buildings
Auditors' remuneration
Employee benefits expense
(excluding directors'
remuneration — note 8):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share
option expenses
Pension scheme contributions

Exchange differences, net
Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of investment properties

Write-back of provision
against inventories
Net rental income

At 31 March 2007, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in f
future years (2006: Nil).

BEFERK
nE- BEREBEE
LHE

(Fsz14)
REMEINE
(FzE15)
BREM L
MEHE

(MizE16)
BRLHREFL
REHES
BEM#H L
EERFRZ
(TREESEHE -
Hizts)
IER%E¢
NEREE

X
BIREHEIER

4 1Y

EHER F8

ER G ﬁﬁﬁ
ZRfE

RENFLRE

FERE

48]

HEBARR

AEBEBRB RN (BR) &M%,/ GEA) AT
B
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total
REGERE BRIEEERH fit
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Z2RLE CITRE ZEBRLE TR ZBRLE CITRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiExn TEL TR TEL TR T
168,509 136,723 - 6,726 168,509 143,449
146 1,665 - 2,620 146 4,285
2,312 430 - = 2,312 430
779 728 - = 779 728
389 450 - 155 389 605
1,020 1,180 - = 1,020 1,180
1,906 1,590 - 1,732 1,906 3322
- 86 - = - 86
140 124 - 21 140 145
2,046 1,800 - 1,753 2,046 3,553
1,450 2,194 - (43) 1,450 2,151
- = - 3,873 - 3,873
446 = - = 446 =
- (485) - - - (485)
1,200 654 - = 1,200 654
R_FTLF=A=+—8" $EIEMEEW

AT
e

/
'D

i
o

A
~
-

R E R R F 2R
&) -

RIRE &SI (=



XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
BT B A = B # B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 FHR pms

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rl 5 ¥ &« B BE

31 March 2007 =ZBZt#=H=1+-H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BREEBBMEXIMARLDAES EMARARE
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange BRAMGOIFE16MEREC AFEEEMEF B
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of K

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
AEHE
2007 2006
—EELE —EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHE T
Fees: wE
Executive directors HITES - =
Independent non-executive B IETT
directors = 300 300
300 300
Other emoluments of HITESEZ
executive directors: H b i< -
Salaries, other allowances e - HfEah
and benefits in kind REYH &= 1,040 1,040
Equity-settled share NiEREE 2
option expenses B IR R B 2 - 380
Pension scheme contributions RIKNE R B K 52 52
1,092 1,472
1,392 1,772

n




XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
B oDy A = B #E B R = =

ANNUA

L REPORT 2007 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl 5

$ © M B

31 March 2007 Z=EEt#=H=+-H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

EEME (8

(a)

18

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non—executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai =EERLE
Mr. Lau Pok Lam BIBEM S &
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan =mEELE

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non—executive directors during the year
(2006: Nil).

(a) BYFHITES
REAXNTHEIUFATEZ2RESMT ¢

Group

EN-
2007 2006

—EELFE S TEIR

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
100 100
100 100
100 100
300 300

AEE AN &R B IFMITES 2 A H it B

2 (ZETRF E) o



E&;XWVt?C"?FMDFL477C"VlJm"7EﬂD
BT B A = B # B R = =

ANNUAL

REPORT

2007 F ]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rl #5 R

31 March 2007

& M &

ZEEtLtFZHA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM< (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Salaries,
other Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total

2007
S 123

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Mr. Yu Wai Man

Mr. Ng Eng Leng

Mr. Wilson Ng

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

2006
L

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Mr. Yu Wai Man

Mr. Ng Eng Leng

Mr. Wilson Ng

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

BHERE
RIEXSTE
mREBTAE
BRELLE
BRAELE

BRHERE
REXELE
=mEBLE
BREELE
mEELE

in kind expenses  contributions remuneration
HZMR BEZ RIS

BYA &= BRERX =t 81 MeRE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET THET TET

520 = 26 546

260 = 13 273

260 = 13 273

1,040 = 52 1,092

520 76 26 622

260 76 13 349

260 76 13 349

= 76 = 76

= 76 = 76

1,040 380 52 1,472

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

AEERYEERFLREN S AR ERENE

R

19
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

IfuBEHES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2006: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining two (2006: two) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

Other allowances and Hth )2 8L R
benefits in kind B =
Equity-settled share option NEREE 2 BE
expenses <

Pension scheme contributions BN FT S K

The remuneration of all non—director, highest paid employees
fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for the years
ended 31 March 2007 and 2006.

During the year, there were no bonuses paid to or receivable
by any of the five highest paid employees of the Group (2006:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
(2006: Nil).

FAZANRRFREZT U (ZFTTXRF:
M) REF REZHMESFBCEHIIN EXHE
8 B I (ZETRE M) FEFZEFHE
BzMEHBHT

Group

ARE
2007 2006
—BBLE _FEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAT
456 436
- 56
25 22
479 514

HE - ZETELFR - TEEF=A=1+—HIF
B FAEdEEs RafEEZHEANTEE
1,000,000/ 7T 2 48 B A °

FRAEEREREMNAUESHES (ZTF
NEE) N HENERIELAL o AREMERE
A& EHEE NS ARSI REMBRE
B ESMBARERZ RMRBEBHE(ZET
NE ) o
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31 March 2007 =ZBZt#=H=1+-H

)

BiIE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2006: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Group:
Current — elsewhere and
tax charge for the year

AER :

BIHR — H it (R AR FE
B

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to the
profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective

tax rates is as follows:

Group - 2007

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the applicable
tax rate

Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group's
effective rate

Tax charge attributable to
discontinued operations
(note 11)

Tax charge attributable to
continuing operations reported
in the consolidated income
statement

ARFATERERECERTGH  MAKE
TERBENCSHER(ZTTAF  E) - KH
el AR ZEBRBGFFIER  CREEB R
AR B REN  BRAKEREXHZER
ZHEEE -

2007 2006
—BBLE _FTAAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR BT

FRAARRESENBAREMALEE 2%
R BE 2 B BATR R (BTHR) R 2 HOE X
i/ (%) BB BE HE 2 BOAS 2 W
mF

ARE-=BBLE

Mainland
Hong Kong Singapore China Total
&7 N3 B KB a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L FRR TRT AT TR

BR B AT

(EB#H) (15,903) 21,152 (1,606) 3,643
RERBEASE

Z T I8 (2,783) 3,807 (531) 493
BARRBA (285) (284) - (569)
AT 08 B 2 1,338 30 - 1,368
ARG EE 1,730 - 531 2,261
BASEEERBEX
AECRER - 3,553 - 3,553
BRIEEEER

FEE 2 BIEX I

(BzE11) -
REREREREZ

FEICEET

FEMETRIE X

3,553

81




XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
B oDy A = B #E B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F ]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bl % &k © B BE
31 March 2007 Z=EEt#=H=+-H
10. TAX (continued) 10. B IE (&)
Group — 2006 REE-—_ZTTRF
Hong Kong Singapore Total
& ADIIESS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT FAT
Profit/(loss) before tax Br&L AR A (EE)
(including loss from (BEERLELE
discontinued operations) X2 EE) (22,619) 15,457 (7,162)
Tax at the applicable tax rate REANMEAEZNE (3,958) 3,091 (867)
Income not subject to tax HARTKA (349) (114) (463)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR F X 655 195 850
Tax losses not recognised AERBRBKER 3,652 - 3,652
Tax charge at the Group's BAEBEERNERGE
effective rate ZBEX = 3,172 3,172
Tax charge attributable to ERIEREEBEMN
discontinued operations (note 11) ZBE M (BFEE11) -
Tax charge attributable to continuing REFERBERBEZ
operations reported in the FEKEEB RN
consolidated income statement FRIE X 3,172

82
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31 March 2007 =ZBZt#=H=1+-H

On 31 August 2005, pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement entered into between the Group and an
independent third party, the Group agreed to dispose of its
entire equity interest in Gadgets Yard Limited and its subsidiary
(together known as the “GY Group") together with the relevant
shareholder's loan. The GY Group was engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of a wide range of toys.

The results of the discontinued operations for the year are
presented below:

Revenue WA

Expenses <

Finance costs A& B

Loss before tax B 51 BT &5 18

Tax IE

Loss for the year from the ERIERERB 2
discontinued operations REFEE

=

R-ZZEZRFNA=1T—H AEEEBUE=
AN EEHE Bt AEEREHER
RBERERRBLEMB AR (5l REERE])
ZEEMEE  ERABARRER - RESERE
Rt HENHERRESMAZ X -

AERCRIEREXRBZEE250T ¢

2007 2006
—BBLE _FTAHF
HK$'000 HK$'000

- (7,855)
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11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

11.

ba

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operations
are as follows:

Operating activities SR
Investing activities REEH
Financing activities MEE
Net cash outflow Remib #8E
Loss per share: BREE :
Basic, from the discontinued HEAX REEKLE
operations BEE
Diluted, from the g REERLE
discontinued operations BEEK

The calculation of basic loss per share from the discontinued
operations is based on:

Loss attributable to ordinary ARAEBERER
equity holders of the HEABREERIE
Company from the discontinued Rax®
operations ZEE

Weighted average number of AEBREAERR
ordinary shares in issue ERZARFE
during the year used in the EETERMR
basic loss per share calculation INHE T 15 8

*  Weighted average number of ordinary shares for year ended 31
March 2006 has been restated to reflect the open offer during
the year ended 31 March 2007 (note 29(b)).

ERIEREER (&)
AEEERIEREEBMEEZREREFEN
o
2007 2006
S5 —ERTAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
L TFREE TR
- (5,696)
- (189)
- 4,650
- (1,235)

HK7.1 centsi& Il

N/AT 3E A

AEREEREREXHBZEREAREBRR

N/ATiE A

HK$7,495,0007% 7T

105,861,138*

t BE_ETRE=-"A=t-BILEEZTBERK
DINEFEHEEFTUNEN  URBRREE-ZZ
+tEZA=Z+—BILFERNETZRAMAEE (M

29(b)) °



E&;XWVt?C"?FMDFL477C"VlJm"7EﬂD
BT B A = B # B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 F ]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# © M B

ZEEtLtFZHA=+—H

Rl 5

31 March 2007

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 1. BRIERE XK (&)
Diluted loss per share amount for the year ended 31 March R AT AR AR R B 5 R FE R R ARITRZ ERE
2006 has not been disclosed as the convertible note and BE_ZZERF=ZA=ZT—BHLEFEZERER
bonds and share options outstanding during that year had BEEAERBEYE ARTERBESRILERLS
anti—dilutive effects on the basic loss per share from the FBcERBEEEESE -
discontinued operations.

12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 12. ARAEBRHEAREER
The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the RARAMBHRERAREZBE_TTLF=H
Company for the year ended 31 March 2007 includes a loss ST+ —HLEFEZARRERBBARGEEBER
of HK$3,817,000 (2006: HK$8,843,000) which has been dealt 3,817,000 T (ZZZ /S : 8,843,000/ 7T) (Mt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 31 231(b)) °
(b)).

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13. X RAEEREZFAEARGERER

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company for the year of HK$7,904,000 (2006:
HK$15,994,000), and the weighted average of 218,723,611
(2006: 105,861,138, restated to reflect the open offer during
the year ended 31 March 2007 (note 29(b))), ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31 March
2007 and 2006 have not been disclosed, as the convertible
notes and share options outstanding during these years had
anti—dilutive effects on the basic loss per share for these years.

BREABESENEBAFE 2 AR AEER
EAEGEARFEEFBEFET040008 L (ZEE
NE 1 15,994,0008 L) RAFEEBHITEBR 2
M FHE21872361 1K (ZFTTNF
105,861,138f% * KEHINRMRBE_TZTLF
AT ALEFERENTZARES (Wi
29(b)) ) 5T & o

ARABRERERERARRTECBRELSEE
—ERLER_FBTERNFZA=ZT-BLEFEZ
BREAABEAAREETE  AUHYTEREZ
MEFE cBRETHESHE -
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31 March 2007 Z=EEt#=H=+-H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - WERRE
Group rEE
Furniture,
fixtures,

31 March 2007

At 31 March 2006 and
at 1 April 2006:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2006, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2007, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 March 2007:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

Moulds,  equipment
Leasehold  plant and and motor Construction

improvements  machinery vehicles in progress Total
BE- GH %8
MELE BERBE RERAE HBEIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET TAT TET
—EEtE5=fA=t-H
RZEERNE=ZA=+—H
ER-ZEEREWMA—H :
P 24 88,302 1,592 32,288 122,206
2RMER
B E (8) (88,302 (1340)  (32,288)  (121,938)
EHHE 16 = 252 = 268
RZZEZERENA—A
NBREBRMER
RIE 16 = 252 = 268
NE - - 15 = 15
AEE
e ) - (139) - (146)
X A% 1 = 25 = 26
RZEE+FE=R
== ¢
NBREBRMERAE 10 - 153 = 163
R-_BE+E=F=1+—8:
[N 25 - 1,650 32,288 33,963
ZERMER
HE (15) - (1,497)  (32,288)  (33,800)
ERFE 10 = 153 = 163




XXIN CORPORATION LIMITED
BT B A = B # B R = =

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 FHR pms

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bl 5 ¥ © B 5%
31 March 2007 =FEt#=H=+—-H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. W% - BERZE (E)
Group KE
Furniture,
fixtures,
Moulds,  equipment
Leasehold plantand  and motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery vehicles in progress Total
BE BE &H- %E.
£ UES 3 k#E RERSE EEIR aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TEL TEL TERL
31 March 2006 “23AFZRZ1-H
At 1 April 2005: RZZTREMA-R:
Cost or valuation KA E 23,170 22,544 89,023 5,043 32,288 172,068
Accumulated depreciation ZRITER
and impairment RE - (22,438) (82,315) (4,356) (32,288) (141,397)
Net carrying amount FEFE 23,170 106 6,708 687 - 30,671
At 1 April 2005, net of R-ZTREMWA-R -
accumulated depreciation NREBHER
and impairment WE 23,170 106 6,708 687 - 30671
Additions ME = = 185 296 = 481
Disposals it - (5) (772) (82) - (859)
Impairment HE - (46) (3,501)F (326) - (3,873)
Depreciation provided AER
during the year ik (1,303) (39) (2,620) (323) - (4,285)
Transfer to investment BRERENS
properties (note 15) (W3E15) (21,867) - - - - (21,867)
At 31 March 2006, net of RZBE =R
accumulated depreciation =t-H
and impairment nh2BHERAE - 16 - 252 - 268
At 31 March 2006: RZEENEZA=T-0:
Cost HA - 2% 88,302 1,592 32,288 122,206
Accumulated depreciation ZBRAER
and impairment AE - (8) (88,302) (1,340) (32,288)  (121,938)
Net carrying amount BREHE - 16 - 252 - 268

81
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31 March 2007 Z=EEt#=H=+-H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. N¥E BERSZE (E)
*#  The Group has discontinued its toddler cars segment, cycling tOARREREECEERNF =A== —HILEFER
segment and other toys segment after the disposal of the GY HERMEER  BRIELCEHSBTE  WHS
Group during the year ended 31 March 2006. As a result, the REMITAE %% - Al - EFERA - HEER
directors are of the opinion that the recoverable value of the BZHBAEAR  BE ks ZTH&(@%E‘EEWT
relevant moulds, plant and machinery for manufacturing of toys RE HUERZSERE  BERKE ZREE
is minimal. Accordingly, a full provision for impairment was made 2 BB o
for these moulds, plant and machinery.
Company PN
Furniture, fixtures,
equipment and
motor vehicles
R £E -
RERRE
2007 2006
—EBELE —TERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
At 1 April: ROA—A :
Cost BN 631 631
Accumulated depreciation ZREME (619) (610)
Net carrying amount FREF1E 12 21
At 1 April, net of RO A—H - Mk
accumulated depreciation ZENE 12 21
Depreciation provided KEZ
during the year e (3) 9)
At 31 March, net of R=ZA=+—HB#Hk
accumulated depreciation RBEHE 9 12
At 31 March: R=ZA=+—8:
Cost BN 631 631
Accumulated depreciation ZREME (622) (619)
Net carrying amount FREFE 9 12
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

# © M B

ZEEtLtFZHA=+—H

Rl 5

31 March 2007

Cost: DN
At 1 April RMEA—H
Transfer from owner-occupied EREXTEA
properties (note 14) mE (HE14)
Exchange realignment DE 5 A B
At 31 March R=A=+—H
Accumulated depreciation EZRINER
and impairment: A -
At 1 April RMEA—H
Depreciation provided REEF
for the year wE
Impairment 18
Exchange realignment DE A B
At 31 March KR=A=+—H
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 March KR=A=+—H

The aggregate fair value of the Group's investment properties
as at 31 March 2007 was HK$21,330,000 (2006:
HK$21,560,000) based on valuation (the “Valuation”)
performed by Knight Frank Petty Limited, a firm of independent
professionally qualified valuers, on a direct comparison
approach at 31 March 2007. Based on the Valuation, the
directors determined that, certain of the Group's investment
properties were impaired as their carrying values before
impairment were higher than their recoverable amounts. As a
result, an impairment loss of HK$446,000 was charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year.

At 31 March 2007, the Group's investment properties with a
carrying value of approximately HK$15,620,000 (2006:
HK$21,437,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 24).

15. REWH

Group

AEE
2007 2006
—2ELHF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
21,867 =
- 21,867
1,531 =
23,398 21,867
430 =
2,312 430
446 =
22 =
3,210 430
20,188 21,437

AEBZEREMER-_ZTZTLF=A=+—H0Z
ANEBEELES21,330,0008 T (T NF
21,560,00087T) - BHASBNREBEREVEEESE
BEEMEGAGTRITERARAR TS LE=
A=+ —BREELEZET2HE(THE]E
o REME EEHTASEETRENED
BRE MEANERBEM EEAERREE
B At  ERAFEE 2GRS RERNBRRERS
18446,000/8 7T °

R-_ZTETELHFE=ZA=Z+—H HKEHEHDH
15,620,000 7t (ZZ TR F : 21,437,000/ 7T)
CAREEREMECEERER  URBAEEER
Z—MRITEE (HE24) -
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31 March 2007

$ © M B

ZEEBtFZH=+—-H

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

16. AN T B ERE

KA —HZREE

Carrying amount

at 1 April
Recognised during the year KA FE R
Exchange realignment BE 5 58 B
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=tT—BzZKHE
Current portion B E D
Non-current portion FERBE D

The prepaid land lease payments are paid for the right to use
certain lands under long term leases in Mainland China.

Pursuant to various sale and purchase agreements (the “S&P
Agreements”) entered into between the Group and an
independent third party, during the years 1998 and 1999, the
Group acquired certain land use rights (the “Land") in Mainland
China with a carrying value of HK$26,354,000 as at 31 March
2007. Pursuant to the S&P Agreements, the Group is required
to pay an annual fee of HK$126,000 in respect of the Land
commencing from 2008 up to 2048 with a 20% increment
for every five years starting from 2008 (note 34).

The Group has not yet obtained the land use rights certificate
for the Land. Having consulted with the Group's Mainland
China lawyers, the directors considered that the Group has the
right to use the Land and after the payment of a premium of
approximately HK$17,683,000 and attending the necessary
administrative procedures, the Group should be able to obtain
the land use rights certificate for the Land.

Group

rEHE
2007 2006
—BBLF —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
30,544 31,272
(779) (728)
2,138 -
31,903 30,544
(779) (728)
31,124 29,816

AN HEEFRRDREERAEAERLR T
REZET L2 AN M -

R—ANANER—ANANFEHRE @ REASE R
BUE=FIU2%EHEBEGZ ([EBHZE]) -
AEBRPREAERESE T I FERAE ([ZL
) ZIHR=ZZTEE+LFE=A=1+—HZEH
B/526,354,0008 7 - RIEEEWHZ  A=FF
NERBEZE-_TENF AL AEBEARZL
Y FEE126,0008 T WEA ST N\FRE
T & HN200% (F5E34) o

REBWRGZ I HMES L FEREE - £FH
REBHERME  ESRA A5BBEERE
Azt o R HEE 4 17,683,000% T &
MBARZITRFER  ASBEETHNZIMH
Z T AR -
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31 March 2007 Z=ZEFtF=F=+—-H
16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 16. FE{S + #h H & EH ()
At 31 March 2007, the Group's prepaid land lease payments RZZETLF=A=+—8 - {E1E2,149,000/& T
with a carrying value of HK$2,149,000 (2006: HK$4,128,000) (ZZZRF : 4,128,0008 L) 2 REEFER L
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to TH,-%/TAIEET’E?EH‘? BB AEBER 2 — KRR
the Group (note 24). TEE (f5E24) -
17. GOODWILL 17. B8

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of additional 24% interest
in Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd. (“Xin Procurement”)
from the minority shareholder, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. ("HCSPL"), is related to the procurement business cash—
generating unit.

The recoverable amount of the procurement business cash—
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five—year period approved by senior

management.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the procurement business cash—generating unit for 31 March
2007. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year.

Discount rate — The discount rate used (8%) is before tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

ft — & L 8% F Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
([HCSPLJ) Yz #&Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd.
([Xin Procurement]) 2 B5N 240 E s EE 4 2 &
PREBEBREEBM -

REXGHREELEN A RNERBAD REES
BEAMEE  BEREEEIERERFHE
LHBREMABRERERAMETE

W_TTLF AT BZRBEEBREEL
BURAERAEEAZEZFEEAAIZRR
ATHAEREENARS RERBETEHERER
ARFKAZREIERR

BEENE - REEES N EREEMNRZE
EFRACEESNBERREFEMFEER L
FHEME -

EE — FERAYTEX (8%) B BRI KRR

FEBEMN 2 FTERBR -

91
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5 ¥& © B BE

31 March 2007 Z=EEt#=H=+-H

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AN AMOUNT DUE
FROM A SUBSIDIARY

18. RIMBARZREREYR —EMHEAF Z2HKE

92

Unlisted shares, at cost E LMD - A ANEET
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE

Due from a subsidiary — R B & Rl R
Less: Provision for impairment o R ERE

The amount due from a subsidiary included in the Company's
current assets is unsecured, interest—free and has no fixed
terms of repayment. The carrying amount of this amount due
from a subsidiary, after provision for impairment, approximates
to its fair value.

An impairment loss of HK$966,000 in respect of the amount
due from a subsidiary was reversed in the current year because
the subsidiary of the Group had improved financial position as
at the balance sheet date.

Company
KA F

2007 2006
—BBLE _FEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH THT
(68,709) (68[709)
219,615 212,467
(211,501) (212,467)
8,114 _
8,114 _

AARRBZRBDEEZMBARRKAEL
- REREBEERD - B —FHEBIRR
EREREBRRZEAERELATEEAS -

FhHE U — I B /B 2 B 5108 2 BB E5 18 966,0007% 7T
ERAFEED  RRARNEEZZHBRAAR
RERAZHBRABINRE -
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31 March 2007 Z=ZEFtF=F=+—-H
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AN AMOUNT DUE 18. RIBRAAZREREBKR—BEHWE QR 2RE
FROM A SUBSIDIARY (continued) (%)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as ARARFEMBRARIZERDT ¢
follows:
Place of Nominal Percentage of
incorporation/ value of issued equity attributable
registration ordinary/registered to the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
SR BRTZER/ AAREEEZEOL
1 A RS R A RAZEE % A & TEXH
Hung Cheong British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 = Investment
Holdings Limited ("BVI")/Hong Kong US$2,004 holding
HEERBERARA RERAES ([HB E#Mx2,004% T REEK
RUBR]) /BB
Able Market Profits BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment
Limited RERLES TARIET holding
RERK
Xin Toys Factory Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$4 - 100 Dormant
AT ABAERRA RERREE/BH TRkaET EEex
Xin Toys International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Dormant
Limited BB ERR2E T EEZX
METABRER LA
Huang Chiang Chen Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 = 100 Property
Hung Cheong Plastics BB Non-voting deferred holding
Factory Company Limited HK$10,000* NERE
BLREEEBRARAA & Ak 1,000/ 7T
ERZERELTRN
10,0007 7 *
Xin Procurement Singapore Ordinary - 75+ Supply and
i $$10,000 procurement of
LA 10,000 equipment, goods
I and services
for vessels
REBRFBEH
Rt BEmRRE
Z B Rk
REFelne®m People's Republic of HK$5,700,000 - 100 Dormant
L ENG China/Mainland China 5,700,000 7T TEEE
hEARAME
GIEYN
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31 March 2007

18.

ZEEBtFZH=+—-H

5t

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AN AMOUNT DUE
FROM A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

18. RIBARZRERER—BHE QR ZKE

(%)

9

*

*%

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends
other than a fixed non—cumulative dividend at the rate of 5%
per annum on the excess of the net profit over
HK$1,000,000,000,000 that the company may determine to
distribute in respect of any financial year. On a winding—up, the
holders of the non—-voting deferred shares are entitled, out of
the surplus assets of the company, to a return of the capital
paid—-up on the non-voting deferred shares held by them, after
a total sum of HK$1 trillion had been distributed in such a
winding—up in respect of each of the ordinary shares of the
company. Save as described above, the holders of the non—
voting deferred shares are not entitled to any participation in
the profit or surplus assets of the company and shall not be
entitled to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the company.

On 28 February 2007, the Group acquired an additional 24%
interest in Xin Procurement, which resulted in an increase of the
Group's interest in Xin Procurement from 51% at 31 March
2006 to 75% at 31 March 2007. Further details of the acquisition
were disclosed in notes 27(b), 32(a)(ii) and 36(a).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

*

*k

o=t
<
FEH

L]

ﬁ&ﬂf@éLUﬂ/ﬁZhﬁ/\ BRI A B R E
B BFE - 2R F) 7] 88 R T 12 506 H R &
ﬁﬂ%%hmqwamow&%mZ%%Zlm%
2ERE BRIz BERZEETERGOHFEEA
ERWMRE - FRN - ERZEREERMHESR
Aﬁ*&%@ﬂkaﬁﬂxﬁéﬁﬂﬁé/\
1,000,000,000,000/& 1% - RIBERERA 2 B
SRETERGD  BARIZESBEETEEREES
BAR B b BREBRETRNIFTEA
?ﬁi’f&ﬁ?@ Al 2SR A E ¢ RR I EREL

RAIZBRAEBE  ILEZRZEASULES

J:Xm"

RZZBEZEELHF_A=-+NHB  A&EKEXn
ProcurementZ B8 7N 24% 7 5+ B EHA £ B K Xin

ProcurementZ @ —TZEAF=A=+—HZ

518 NE—ZE+F=A=+—HB275%° K
BEEHZE-FHBERME27(b) - 32() (i) &
36(a) NI E °

BB LEFIZARAINBAAYAFE
%EEIE%‘*ﬁ%W$%E§E%@Z

cERERA HUHEMKHBARRBERK
@%AEO
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19. INVENTORIES 19. &€
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELE —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Goods held for resale HEBEZEm 1,970 2,073
20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20. EWERR
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on BREEFP-—REBEEEMNREN  AEEEERTF
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance CESBRFUGEERE  FEH-—RAH—(E
is normally required. The credit period is generally for a period A MEERXFPARAIEREZE=ZZEAHEA - 8EFE
of one month, extending up to three to six months for major FHAEEaFERE mRERESTEHRTE
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. Overdue HifEeR - RRRAAT R - BUERS Z FREE R
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. HRFEERSE
Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of the accounts receivable approximate to their fair
values.
An aged analysis of the accounts receivable at the balance REER @ REZBPRBGREEER 2 EYERT
sheet date, based on invoice date, and net of allowances, is R oM R -
as follows:
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EE2LE —EETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Within 30 days 30H A 18,939 13,138
31 to 60 days 31260HA 18,960 10,629
61 to 90 days 61290H A 11,905 13,083
91 to 180 days 91E£180H 25,337 17,046
Over 180 days #iB180H 728 3,795
75,869 57,691
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31 March 2007

ZEEBtFZH=+—-H

5t

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. BeRBELEEY

Re RRITHERF
EHMER
REZNHERR
BARZ=EA
Ak

Cash and bank balances
Time deposit:
With original maturity of more
than three months when
acquired

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounting to approximately HK$284,000
(2006: HK$1,216,000) deposited with banks in Mainland
China. RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
Under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposit is made for one year, and
earns interest at the respective time deposit rate. The carrying
amounts of the cash and bank balances and the time deposit
approximate to their fair values.

Group

EN-
2007 2006
—BBLF —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
28,225 5,123
1,030 -
1,030 -
29,255 5,123

R—_ET+E=ZA=+—8 ' AEBUAARET
BzReRBITET R284,0008 T (ZTET X
F : 1,216,000/ 7T) * HFHRH B AR 2RT
ERTER - ARBTEEBRARAINE - RIEF
B KR (ONEEBER KR - EERNEETE
BE)  ANEBAEBERTETINEREL ZRTT
BARE LB BINE o

FERBIZRASBRESHRITERANRRFESY
FERBAME - EREFERAHM—F » WIRAEHE
HERMEHRDAE - R RRTEFZREE
BENFEEES -
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31 March 2007 =FEt#=H=+—-H
22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE 22. BEANERARENRE
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable at the REER  BERAHMIENRIRENZER
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: e i O
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Within 30 days 30N 12,322 6,848
31 to 60 days 31260H A 3,410 2,868
61 to 90 days 61E90H A 517 372
91 to 180 days 91£180H K 338 591
Over 180 days B 180H 4,432 2,246
21,019 12,925
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally FERBR XTI AET B R —MRHN 608 RAERR - BT AR
settled on 60-day terms. The carrying amounts of the accounts FZEEBEEREATEEBEES - BENERRER
payable approximate to their fair values. Included in the above &Tﬁfﬁﬁmﬁ%%S 000B L (ZETAF &) ' H
are bills payable of HK$265,000 (2006: Nil) which are within tR# B30 A °
30 days.
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. H B R R B K
Group Company
&R PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF ZEELE ZTTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FTERT TAET
Other payables H th & BR 3R 349 4,479 6 102
Accruals FEAT IR 22,633 18,016 1,872 2,247
22,982 22,495 1,878 2,349

9
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31 March 2007 Z=EEt#=H=+-H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

24.

FPERITERRE M E K

Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity
BB FIE(%) ZH A

Bank loans RITE R

— secured —BHEA 6.138 1 year&
Trust receipt loans  EFEMIEE R

— secured — B 8 90 daysH
Other loan H At & 5%

— unsecured —EE AR 4 1 year&

At 31 March 2007, the bank loan facilities of the Group were
supported by:

(a) certain investment properties and prepaid land lease
payments of the Group in Mainland China with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$17,769,000
(2006: HK$25,565,000) (notes 15 and 16);

(b) corporate guarantees executed by a subsidiary of the
Company;

(c) a corporate guarantee executed by HCSPL;

(d) a personal guarantee executed by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng, a parent of certain directors of the Company and a
substantial shareholder of the Company; and

(e) certain bank deposits of HCSPL of not less then
S$5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$25,750,000).

All the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings bear interest
at fixed rates. The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company's borrowings approximate to their fair values.

Group Company
rEE NN
2007 2006 2007 2006

SETLE “TITAF —FTLE —TIAF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

11,550 15,884 - —
529 - - —

- 2,000 - 2,000
12,079 17,884 - 2,000

R_ETLF=A=+—H FrEEZRTHE
A5 & IR R

(@) AEBEREAEL17,769,0008 T (=ZF
% : 25,565,000/ L) 2 & T B KRER
wREF (HiE15Kk16) :

ZR
_:n:
E\

(b) AAFETHEARELZAFER

() HCSPLERIZ Z R AIHER :

(d) ARAETEFZRXEBRARATERRE
BEEERLZBEALER &

() HCSPL 4 % 5,000,0003% 7T (# & ®
25,750,000 7T) 2 & TRITERK °

SRRTERREERD BN EE R E
B AEERART L RBREAZEAERLA
FEEE -
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LOAN FROM A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

25.

# © M B

ZEEtLtFZHA=+—H

Rl 5

31 March 2007

— UL BRREHRZERK

26.

The loan was advanced by a minority shareholder of one of
the Group's subsidiaries. The loan is unsecured and interest—
free. Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreements entered into
between the Group and the minority shareholder of the relevant
subsidiary, the minority shareholder has agreed not to demand
the repayment of the loan until the relevant subsidiary has the
ability to do so and has obtained prior consent from the Group
for the repayment of the loan. The carrying amount of the
loan from a minority shareholder approximates to its fair value.

DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER AND A RELATED
COMPANY

26.

ZEEFRMASEER -HHBAR Z — L
PR - EXREBEERRLE - REASEE
FREMBARZ PBBRAT L2 BRGE - D&
BRERABETGBREEZEER  RIFFEM
BRAARENERELEBRREFTENGALHE
REEEFRFLZAE - PERRERZERZ
RHEEAERFEERS -

BN -—UIBRRR-—BBEELQR2HE

The amounts due to a minority shareholder and a related
company are unsecured, interest—free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The carrying amounts of the amounts due to a
minority shareholder and a related company approximate to
their fair values.

JEA — L D BURER K — PRI B E N A 2 SRIA I
B REREBEEETRS - BN DBERRRE
BE-HBERRcRAZGEEEE QA FEEM

++

E o

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 27. IRRREE
Group and Company
FEERERAT

2007 2006
ZEBLHF —TETREF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% TERT FET

Convertible note issued to 1T T Vision CenturyZ
Vision Century A]REE @) 13,658 26,674

Convertible note issued to 1T FHCSPLZ

HCSPL ]REE (b) 5,878 -
19,536 26,674
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

27. TRREE (&)

100

(a)

(b)

Notes:

On 30 March 2006, the Company issued a convertible note in
the principal amount of HK$37,000,000 to Vision Century, as
part of the consideration for the release and discharge of the
Group from all of its obligations and liabilities in respect of a
loan advanced by Vision Century (the “Old Convertible Note").
Vision Century has the right to convert the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible note into shares at any time before
29 March 2009 at the conversion price of HK$0.141 per
conversion share, which was adjusted to reflect the Company's
open offer (note 29(b)). The Old Convertible Note carries interest
at a rate of 1% per annum, which is payable semi—-annually in
arrears on 31 March and 30 September.

In March 2007, two conversions in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$20,000,000 of the Old Convertible Note were made by
Vision Century, which resulted in a total number of 141,843,970
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the Company.
After the conversions, the outstanding principal amount of the
Old Convertible Note was reduced to HK$17,000,000 as at 31
March 2007.

On 28 February 2007, the Company issued a convertible note
in the principal amount of HK$7,126,560 to HCSPL, as
consideration for the acquisition of an additional 24% interest
in Xin Procurement and the rights of and benefits in a
shareholder’s loan of S$120,000 (equivalent to HK$618,000)
from HCSPL, the minority shareholder of Xin Procurement (the
“New Convertible Note"). HCSPL has the right to convert the
outstanding principal amount of the New Convertible Note into
shares at any time before 27 February 2010 at a conversion
price of HK$0.17 per conversion share. The New Convertible
Note carries interest at 1% per annum, which is payable semi—
annually in arrears on 31 March and 30 September.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the issuance

date using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar note without

a conversion option. The residual amount is assigned as the equity

component and is included in shareholders’ equity.

(a)

BERD

Z*EMTTFZH# %5

et

RZZTEXRF=H=+H ' &2Qa M Vision
Century3 17 78 € # 37,000,000/ 7T 2 A #4 fk &
1% ER R R 2R 7N & E 5 Vision Centuryfr 2
NEFmMEEZ —DEEREGBEZHBHIRE([E
AR ZEYE|) o Vision CenturyG R — T T AL 4F
=BT A B ATRER % i R (8 8 2 AT R R B R
CHERBBRETREBVRM0IMNBETER AR
3 MEREEABRUARMARRZ AREES (M
H29(b)) - BRI MR EBEREMNE—EFE - A
REBF=A=1T—BENLA=THEFFIHE
=k

RZZFZLF=H ' Vision CenturyE ¥ 17 M K%
KR & #%20,000,0008 T 2 EAT MR ER K
B OBRANEEITAE 141,843,970 FREE
001BTZEBR - RAKE  RZTT+F=A
=+—B AARERECZETRREEASHFER
4% 17,000,000/ Tt °

RZEELFZA=+/\H ' ARAEMHCSPLETT
A& F7,126,5608 T2 AT RRER - {ERMXin
Procurementz 4 2t & & HCSPLUZ 8 R Xin
ProcurementZ 28 ) 249%# z & % 3 B 58 120,000
¥t (HHE 618,000 L) < A R Az KB
([FAT AR ZIR]) - HCSPLERR ZZ—ZF A
ZTERABERE N RERZATRRERARERE
RBRBRETRERRD0I7TETERARG - #A
RREZBEFNE-EFE ERBF=A=+
—HERNA=ZTHEFFHEHRBIN—K -

DA TFEETIREST B BRI & 5 30
=

B
fhat - RIREES D RS

o Rat AR R o
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27. TERREE (&)
ftet : (&)

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The convertible notes issued have been split as to the liability and BETZAARZBEE I HTREBREZLLIWT :

equity components, as follows:

old New
Convertible Convertible
Note Note Total
Bk HEBRE
5B R ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHT
Nominal value of the convertible HE_ZTRE=H
note issued for the year ended =+—BIEFEEET
31 March 2006 R R R 2 REE 37,000 - 37,000
Equity component BaEs (10,344) - (10,344)
Interest expense for the year REZHERX 18 - 18
Liability component RZZBTRF=ZH
at 31 March 2006 and =+—HRERZETRF
1 April 2006 MA—Hz2EBHS 26,674 - 26,674
Nominal value of the convertible RAFEE BT
note issued in current year AR EEREEAE - 7,126 7,126
Equity component g () - (1,282) (1,282)
Interest expense for the year AEFEMNEAX 3,272 39 3,311
Interest paid for the year REEZEMNFE (270) (5) (275)
Conversion of convertible note HABRA R R R (16,018) - (16,018)
Liability component RZZEZE+F=A
at 31 March 2007 =t+—HZEBHD 13,658 5,878 19,536

10
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28. DEFERRED TAX

28. EEH IR

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$34,986,000 (2006: HK$25,100,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in companies that have been loss—making for some

REBREBEBES 2 HIEEER34,986,0008 7T
(ZZZ X% 25,100,000/ 7T) © I ER A%
B EEE AR ZRRERTEN - XEE
VTERZEEERREEHIEEE  ARSEER
TDHESESEBEBREZHBARESE -

time.
The Group and the Company had no unprovided deferred tax RZZEZELF=A=+—-—BRZTERF=A=
at 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006. T— B ANEERAD R EE AR R BRI K
I8 o
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A&
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Authorised: ETERA
10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000%
(2006: 10,000,000,000) (ZZZ A% : 10,000,000,0008%)
ordinary shares BREECOETZ EBK
of HK$0.01 each 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRBRKAR
474,708,026 474,708,026 (—Z T TR :
(2006: 82,704,014) 82,704,0141%) R E A
ordinary shares 0.0 Tz Eimik
of HK$0.01 each 4,747 827

102
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29. BA (%)
BE_ZT FR_ZFTLF=-A=1t—HLHF
BETERLARRRERTEBRERAESH 2
RABEHIIMT

29. SHARE CAPITAL(continued)

A summary of the transactions of the Company's issued ordinary
share capital during the years ended 31 March 2006 and
2007 is set out below:

Issued capital EBTRA
Number of Issued Share
shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
ERTRHHE ERTRE B4 RER &t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt = TERL TAET TERT

At 1 April 2005 R-ZZEZLFMNA—H 1,654,080,285 16,541 59,030 75,571
Capital Reorganisation ~ BRAE#

(as defined below) (EEMT) (a) (1,571,376,271) (15,714) (59,030) (74,744)
At 31 March 2006 RZEERF=A=T—H

and 1 April 2006 ;rZ_ZFMA—H 82,704,014 827 - 827
Issued on Open Offer  RREEFTET

(as defined below) (EEWMT) (b) 248,112,042 2,481 27292 29,773
Issued on conversion of A AR EE H A

convertible notes FET (©) 141,843,970 1,418 20,106 21,524
Share options exercised 1715 B i # FT % 17 (d) 2,048,000 21 602 623

474,708,026 4,747 48,000 52,747

Share issue expenses B EITHX - - (1,765) (1,765)
At 31 March 2007 R-_ZELF=A=1—H 474,708,026 4,747 46,235 50,982
Notes: et -

(@ BEARAR-ZTERFAA-T=ZHEITZR
RENAGLBBZFIRAR  ARAEREMKR
AER(RAZEA]) EFBETIIRE:

(a) Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2005, a capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) involving, inter alia,
the following steps was implemented:

TR 2 EE0.00958 T 0 BB %

TGz R EER.01 TTEIR A S K
0.00057% 7 (AR A AR ) ¢

(i) a reduction of the nominal value of each issued share 0)
from HK$0.01 to HK$0.0005 by the cancellation of
HK$0.0095 per share (the “Capital Reduction”);

AEARBA RN EBER EREDH (KRN
HEREH])

(i) the cancellation of the entire amount standing to the credit (i)
of the share premium account of the Company (the “Share
Premium Cancellation”);
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

29. BR& (@)

104

Notes: (continued)

(b)

©

(d)

(iii) the credit arising from the Capital Reduction and the Share
Premium Cancellation were transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company where they were utilised
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company as at
30 September 2004; and

(iv) subject to the forthwith upon the Capital Reduction and

Share Premium Cancellation, a consolidation of every 20

issued shares of HK$0.0005 each into one consolidated

share of HK$0.01 each.

On 16 October 2006, the Company effected an open offer of
248,112,042 new shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.12 per share
(the “Open Offer”) to its qualifying shareholders on the basis of
three offer shares for every share held on that date. Cash
proceeds of approximately HK$29,773,000, before the related
expenses, were received by the Company.

In March 2007, two conversions in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$20,000,000 of the Old Convertible Note were made by
Vision Century at conversion price of HK$0.141 per share,
resulting in the issue of 141,843,970 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each. The conversion resulted in an increase in share capital
and share premium account by approximately HK$1,418,000
and HK$20,106,000, respectively.

The subscription rights attaching to 2,048,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.23 per share
(note 30), resulting in the issue of 2,048,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each for a total cash consideration of HK$471,000
and the transfer of HK$152,000 from share option reserve to
the share premium account.

ffat : (&)

(b)

©

(d)

(i) B 2N HI AR K AR f )i 18 R 5 2 P EE A PR AR
BARRB 2 EHBRE  ZERACAE
BHARRAR-_ZTZENFAA=ZTHZ R
BiE R

R A B R R B0 5 B S ek B - WAER
FZBEZHABRT - =+ KREKREE0.0005
BTZBEBETRMHEHAE—REREMEOOI
BILZ ARG °

(iv)

REZFERNETATAA ARAETARE
& BRRZBBERE " RROBZE=REER
MZEE BEERONBTHESERBREE
248,112,042 F R EE0.01E T 2 # k7D ([AF
BE]) o FT3H € 5KIEXI29,773,0008 T (Rt A
B =) EBEARARE -

RZZTZTLF=F ' Vision CenturyE R KR EF
[%0.1418 7T « EATM R P KA £ 520,000,000
BLZEABRRERLR BB ARRAET
141,843 970 BIREEC.01B L2 TAR ° iR
BIARA R R0 5 (B Bk 2 Bl 14 1,418,000 7T
%.20,106,000/% 7T °

2,048,000 B EM T 2 RBECIZAEEGR
0.23%8m171% (i 5E30) - BEE172,048,000 &
REECOIB T2 LB - REBRER471,000
PETC LA K 152,000 Tt BE IR E R B B 2 R
M ER -
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30. BBRHERTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company's directors, including independent non—executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company's
shareholders, and any minority shareholders in the Company's
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 30 December
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%, in
nominal amount, of the issued share capital of the Company
on the adoption date of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"). Options which lapsed in accordance with the terms of
this Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non—executive directors of the Company. In
addition, any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non—executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company's shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

ARAIRE BER & ([%aH8)) - ZErElz B
MEHAKEZEXNNELEM A ERSEE

RTHEEEER  ZEZAERSEERRER
RAZER (BRBIUNNTESE)  AEEEM
BE  AKREZERIRBGHEERN  AKREZE
B ARBBRREAREME AR ZEMDEBK
R-ZA8RN-_ZET_F+-_A=+THER K
T

FERTHEIERT - BRIERHA /B ZBEF10

RIBZTEI AR < BRER TEITZRN K
ZIAEREBEREALTEBRARRERTRA
mEZ10% ([FHERERE]) - FAHEASRER
A - WA ARBA EERRR R 2 BRE -
REM+=EAMEAR - RIEZ S ATETTE
RERSEEZRN LRBVBAERFDHTR
0.21% o LBROEME L ERZBEE - &
ARBRRIBERFRASG LA

BFAQBMEMES  FETBRABRFERE
SBREZEMBBA T 2 EREALCARRE B L
FEHTESFLIME - LN MARAEERE
BN TETRAFEELAABEALRTHE
M REARHE - MAAER 1218 A BM BB A A REMR
BEEZTRM 20.1%0KEEE (REBHARS
FTERAR ([BRAT]) RIZE BT 25 B3R
BRABRZA2ABRHDKTETE) BB
5,000,000 7T * BIZBLERFTERARRE RS S L4t
JE o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

30.

BRESE (&)

106

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors or up to the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors in their absolute discretion, but in any event shall not
be less than the greatest of (i) the closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of share options; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company's share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

REERBz2ZAINEZZBPES0AREK
B ERAAINGHEAKREEH BT - IR
BREZITEMRESETE X EERA AR
FERE)RIE -

TEENHEZSE2RET  ETSERA TR
=& ()RR BRI R AER B BB T
FRBBRABKWTE (DD N R X ERE
REAHAEZERERZIME R RERMRE
ZFHRHE  R(i)AARZBOEE -

BAEYEE THESA ABD KBS HEBRRK
SREZHER -
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31 March 2007

ot

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

Date of grant
of share options™

ftaEn

Erercised period
of share options

B
il

Exercise
price

of share
options***

i
HKS

per share

shitn

RAFEAREZ S HARTRZBREDT

Number of share options
RRERE
Name or AT Adusted  Exercised At31
category of pril during during March
partcipant 006 theyear theyear 202}
R-2ExE RER RER 984k
BEELEIEN BA-A L fit =A=1-8
Directors
MrLoMmgCh\Chaks 800000 24000 (1,024000) -
ALt
Wi Yu Wi Man 800000 24000 - 1024000
AEREE
M. Wison Ng 800,000 24000 - 1024000
BRELE
M Ng Wee Keat 800000 24000 - 1024000
BRREE
Mir.Ng Eng Leng 800,000 24000 - 1024000
%%é%é
4000000 1,120,000 (1,024000) 4096000
Other employees 800000 224000 (1,024,000) -
L

4800000%  1344000%  (2048,000) 4,096,000

29-07-2005
“5%1F
tAZThA

29072005
E%nf
tAZTAR

29072005
2%nf
tAZThR

29-07-2005
“5%1%
tAZthA

29072005
2%nf
tAZThR

29-07-2005
“5%1F
tA=thA

29072005 to
28-07-2007
3l

tR-t1AZ
g
tA-thA

29-07-2005 to
28-07-2007

Bt it
tRZTARE
“ERtE
tAthA

29072005 to
28-07-2007
3l

tR-t1AZ
“ERtE
tAZthA

29-07-2005 to
28-07-2007
3l

tR-t1AZE
“ER4E
tA-thA

29072005 to
28-07-2007
—%%ﬂg

tRZthA

ETERLE

tR=T/\A

29-07-2005 to
26-07-2007
“3E1f

tRZt1AZE
g
tRZt\R

03

023

023

023

023

023

Price of the Compang shares
ARARAER
mmediately
M beforethe At exercise
gantdate  ewerdse  date of
of options date  options
RERE  EROE  AERE
RtAg AEW  fikAS
HKS HKS HKS
pershare  pershare per share
skin  skin  sRin
029 0305 029
0295 = =
0295 = =
029 = =
0295 = =
0295 0305 029
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

30. BRAERE ()

108

*  The aggregate number of shares subject to the Scheme was
adjusted from 4,800,000 to 6,144,000 during the year as a
result of the Open Offer (note 29(b)).

** The share options granted to directors and other employees are
vested upon granted.

***  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustments
in the case of capitalisation of profits or reserve, rights or bonus
issues, consolidation, subdivision or reduction of the share capital
or other alternative in the capital structure of the Company.
During the year, the exercise price of the share options was
adjusted from HK$0.295 per share to HK$0.23 per share as a
result of the Open Offer (note 29(b)).

*¥*% The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of
the grant of the share options is the closing price as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the
options. The price of the Company’s share immediately before
the exercise date of the share options is the weighted average
of the Stock Exchange closing prices immediately before the
dates on which the options are execised over all of the exercises
of options within the disclosure line.

The 2,048,000 share options exercised during the year resulted
in the issue of 2,048,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
new share capital of HK$21,000, share premium of
HK$602,000 and the reduction of share option reserve of
HK$152,000, as further detailed in note 29(d) to the financial
statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 4,096,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of
the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 4,096,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company, additional share
capital of HK$41,000 and share premium of HK$1,206,000
(before issue expenses), and reduction of share premium
option reserve of HK$305,000.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 30 April 2007 and
31 May 2007, the remaining 4,096,000 share options were
exercised by the directors of the Company, resulting in the
issue of 4,096,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

* RERZFESLRZBRHOBHEERR
4,800,000/% &=

FEEmMA
6,144,0000% (Ff7E29(b))

O BRTEEREMEECERERREEERE -

*kk

s M R T ER - ETHRSUREARR
Bfn & Bt W BRAEIR - AR A ZBRAR

BEEMED ABKEZTREATHE -1
TR BREZOEECSAAREZEESNHEK

0.2958 TTHAE = &I 0.238 T (M 5£29(b)) °

e RBERER D ABRE AR R RN BRI N
REEBRERLABI—EAXZAEHRIMZ
FRBERAB/ZBUTE ZEBRETEAH
R Z ARR R ER TR & ERETE B #A2
B ZX P AN P I W TR (B B AR SR R S E AV P B 1T
&2 BE -

NS WmﬁZz 048 00017 & A% # B B % 17
2,048,000Hx7£ MR - FTIRA21,0008 7T
W15 % (B 602,000;‘%%5 7T K B s AR 7 55 152,000
BT B BRERME29(d)E —F i -

REER - RIBEZETE - AR 7F)H4,096,0001 #8
BHEMAITE - ERARRIMEBRANEET - BH
TR T 2 BRI e 5 8 B35 174,096,000k A &
BINE B - BBIMNK A 41,0008 7T R IR 1T H
X AR 12 3% 18 1,206,000 7T N I 6 B8 A% 4 % 1%
305,0005 7T °

e %a&’m PELENF=TAR-ZE

+tE&ERA=F— ﬁ%T4o960001“ﬁ§HﬂEéE£«<
AARFEST ﬁ 217 4,096,00008 A& A
LBRT -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. BRAESE (&)
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the RATBREMEBR - RIEZETE - ARAML
Company had no share options outstanding under the Scheme. BB R ARITE -
31. RESERVES/(DEFICITS) 31. (B4
(a) Group (a) A&
The amounts of the Group's reserves/(deficits), and the AFEERNAFEASB 2 & E (Bi) &
movements therein for the current and prior years are HEHHBIRMBRRLEE T‘EE )
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in R o
equity of the financial statements.
(b) Company (b) AAT
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses Total
& 17 % B Bk BERBEn BRERE RRE#R a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET TExT TET
At 1 April 2005 R_ZTLhEF
mA—A 59,030 - ~ (108039)  (49,009)
Capital Reorganisation A=A (59,030) 3,085 - 71,659 15,714
Redemption of LEI R
convertible bonds &% = - - 517 517
Equity-settled share NERHEEZ
option arrangement BREL - - 466 = 466
Share options lapsed RERKBZ
during the year R - - ) 9 -
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (8,843) (8,843)
At 31 March 2006 RZZETREF=AR
and 1 April 2006 ST-HRZIETRF
mA—A - 3,085 457 (44,697) (41,155)
Shares issued on RARBEEETZ
the Open Offer & 15 27,292 - - = 27292
Conversion of the Old RBEMAR
Convertible Note ZiE 20,106 = — — 20,106
Share options exercised RERTEZ
during the year fE AR 602 - (152) - 450
Share issue expenses R BETRX (1,765) - - - (1,765)
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (3,817) (3,817)
At 31 March 2007 R_ZETLF=R
=+—H 46,235 3,085 305 (48,514) 1,111
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31. RESERVES/(DEFICITS) (continued)

31. (B (&)

(b) Company (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share

options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further

explained in the accounting policy for share—based

payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial

statements. The amount will either be transferred to the

share premium account when the related options are

exercised, or be transferred to accumulated losses should

the related options expire or be forfeited.

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(b) &2 7 (&)

BREFFEREROMAFITE BRE
ZRVEE FERMBRRME2.4AKM0
NRZRHZEABRE-—SHEE - E5H
BERERTER  FERESSBRERD
B RR - 3l B R R IR fE R RO R
AIEEREREREREBE

32. RERERBERME

(a) Major non-cash transactions

The Group had the following major non—cash transactions
during the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2007:

0]

(it)

(iii)

10

On 28 February 2007, Xin Procurement declared and
approved an interim dividend of approximately
HK$36,236,000, of which HK$17,757,000 was
payable to the Group’s minority shareholder, which
was settled through an amount due to the minority
shareholder.

On 28 February 2007, the Group acquired an
additional 249% interest in Xin Procurement and the
rights of and benefits in a shareholders’ loan of
S$120,000 (equivalent to HK$618,000) from HCSPL
at a consideration of HK$7,126,560. The consideration
of the acquisition was settled by issuing the New
Convertible Note of principal amount of
HK$7,126,560 by the Company to HCSPL.

In March 2007, two conversions in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 of the Old
Convertible Note were made by Vision Century, which
did not result in any cash flows. The conversions
resulted in a decrease of the liability component of
the convertible note by HK$16,018,000 and an
increase in other payables and accruals by
HK$85,000, representing the unpaid interest accrued
to the portion of the Old Convertible Note converted.

(@) EXHHEXS

REBEE - EERFR-_EE+F=F=1—
HEFER  AEBTCETUTEEHERS
X5

O RZZEZETEF=-A=Z+/AH " Xin
Procurement® J& & #t /& /B 83 j% B %)
36,236,000/ 7T + HH 17,757,000 7T
EXNTASEEZLHBRE - WEBE
RO HEBREFEZFAZM ©

RZBELFE-_A=-+ /7B K&EEMA
HCSPLUY B8 M Xin  Procurement,Z 28 4
249%7HE 25 M IR SR B 3120,0003% 7T (B
618,000/ 7T) 2 M kA - KER
7,126,560 7T - WIEEHZRKERAAA
Bl MHCSPLE TR £ 587,126,560/ /T2
AR BRI -

(iD)

(i) AZZZLF = A - Vision CenturyE #
TR k7 & #5820,000,000/% 7T 2
ERRERLGR  YESREIMRE
ME - HBREBHAIBMRER BB D
16,018,000/ 7T LA K H 4t & 1 5018
K FE 5T FRIAIE J185,000/8 7T * HERE
RBENBRERL D 2B RAF

B o
1N
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued) 2. MEBEREBRME (A
IEHBRERZ (M)

vy RZEZERF=ZA=1+H ' ARAERK

(a) Major non-cash transactions (continued) (a)

(iv) On 30 March 2006, HK$37,856,000 (being the

principal amount of a loan of HK$31,378,000 and
accrued interest of HK$6,478,000) was owed by the
Company to Vision Century. On the same date, the
Company issued to Vision Century a convertible note
in the principal amount of HK$37,000,000 as part of
the consideration for the release and discharge the
Group from all of its obligations and liabilities in
respect of the loan advanced by Vision Century (note
27(a)). The Company settled the remaining accrued
interest of HK$856,000 by cash from internal

Vision CenturyZ 5% 18 £ 37,856,000/% T
(BNEFHAR4£%831,378,000/8 7T & FE &+ 7
86,478,000 L) - REH * AR AR
Vision Century 172~ & 8 37,000,000/%
T2 BRBREE  (EARRRERAE
B 5t Vision CenturyFT 2 B M A& & 2
—EERBEZE S KE (K F27
@) ARRRABERNEAS T8
T FE 5t F) 2 856,000/ T °

resources.
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMKE A
2007 2006
—EELHF —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET
Net assets disposed of: EEHEERR
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RKRE - 859
Inventories TE - 9,138
Accounts receivable JiE Ut BR 3k - 4312
Prepayments, deposits BRAFRE Zek
and other receivables H & K18 - 697
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITE R - 1,861
Accounts payable JE& -1 BR 3K - (2,793)
Other payables and accruals H A & 5 BR X R JE 5T 1B - (594)
Loans from a minority —fr DB R R
shareholder ZERK - (5,880)
Amount due to a director FEHHT B ARz —fiL
of a subsidiary EENIA - (4,650)
Minority interests DERRE R - 1,552
- 4,502
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB A Bl - 66
- 4,568
Satisfied by: XA
Cash /e - 4,568

m
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)

. RERERERME (&)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

Cash consideration ReKE

Cash and bank balances HERE R
disposed of RITHER

Net inflow of cash and HEWRBARZ
cash equivalents RekReEED
in respect of the disposal mAEER

of subsidiaries

(o) HEKEB2AT ()
REERBRRIZRERBEEEMARNF
BEommE :

2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000

o TR TET
- 4,568

- (1,861)

- 2,707

The results of the subsidiaries disposed of in the year RBE_ZTZRF=ZA=1T—RHLEFEMH
ended 31 March 2006 had no significant impact on the EMBRABAIZERETEHAKRELREE 245
Group's consolidated turnover or loss before tax for that EEXBYARTAIERENEATE -
year.
33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. EEHEM
Details of the Group's bank and other borrowings, which are AEBUAEEBEEERBZRITREMBERZ
secured by assets of the Group, are included in notes 15, 16 5 B BEmMEAMTE15 165%24 -
and 24 to the financial statements.
34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, REHNRH
(a) As lessor (@) NHBEAEH
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) AEERBEEHELTHEERRENE (M
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated iE15) MARMZEHR—F -

12

for terms of one year.

At 31 March 2007, the Group did not have any future
minimum lease receivables (2006: HK$467,000) under
non—cancellable operating leases with its tenants.

R-ZTT+F=A=+—H AEEHREH
HBERPFIV 2 T A MK EHET ER K 2
*Xﬂfwﬁé?x 1 (ZZZNFE ¢ 467,000
= .

5
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34, BEMWZH (B

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the properties
are negotiated for terms of one to two years.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non—cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years, SE-ZZFAF
inclusive (BEEEMTF)

In addition, pursuant to various agreements entered into
between the Group and an independent third party in
Mainland China, the Group is required to pay an annual
fee of HK$126,000 in respect of the Land classified as
prepaid land lease payments of the Group in Mainland
China, with a carrying value of HK$26,354,000 at 31
March 2007, commencing from calendar year 2008 up to
calendar year 2048 with a 20% increment for every five
years (note 16).

35. COMMITMENTS

358

BEBEA S4B

AEERBEEHERHHELAETHAE
mE - EﬁExi?%%éPé’ﬁZ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ—éﬁﬁi

(b)

R_ZEFLF=A=1t—8  AKERED
AREEEREAR T FHASIN Z KRR
REESFIBRERET

Group

AEH

2007
—EELFE
HK$'000

2006
TEERF
HK$'000

1,013 312

BN - REBEASBE SRR KR — R ERRE
AT EZZERZ  AEBEARASER
REAREZETHE LN F 21260008
T ARLITHR_ZTE+F=A=+—HZ
IREE 526,354,000 7T + B ZTZTN
FREZFWON\FIL SHEFHABEEMN20%
(MtsE16) ©

Y

At the balance sheet date, the Group had a contractual
commitment in respect of the purchase of inventories of
HK$1,048,000 (2006: Nil). The Company did not have any
commitments as at 31 March 2007 (2006: Nil).

REER  RXEBZANAESREERE
1,0480008 L (ZET R F : &) - RZTTLF
ZA=Z+—"H8 ARRTEAANAE(ZZEEAX
F 8\ o

13
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36. EHEALRS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the

Group also had the following related party transactions:

(a)

14

On 20 February 2004, the Group entered into a
shareholders’ agreement (the “Xin Procurement
Agreement”) with HCSPL, a company incorporated in
Singapore with limited liability, to form Xin Procurement
in Singapore with limited liability. HCSPL is wholly—owned
by New Century International Pte. Ltd. (“New Century
International”), a company incorporated in Singapore with
limited liability. New Century International is in turn wholly—
owned by the parents of Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, both of whom are executive directors of the Company
and also directors of HCSPL. Pursuant to the Xin
Procurement Agreement, the Group and HCSPL owned
51% and 49% of equity interests in Xin Procurement,
respectively. On 28 February 2007, the Group acquired
an additional 24% interest in Xin Procurement and the
rights of and benefits in a shareholders' loan of S$120,000
(equivalent to HK$618,000) from HCSPL at a
consideration of HK$7,126,560 (the “Acquisition”). The
consideration of the Acquisition was settled by issuing
the New Convertible Note of the principal amount of
HK$7,126,560 by Company to HCSPL. Upon completion
of the Acquisition, the Group holds 75% interest in Xin
Procurement and HCSPL holds the remaining 25% interest.
The Acquisition constituted a very substantial acquisition
under the Listing Rules. Details of the Acquisition have
been disclosed in the Company's circular dated 29 January
2007.

BRRAMBHRREMBOABEEIN - AEETT
BUATERBEALRS :

@) RZTETMFEF_A-+H AEFE-HE
O3 S M B 32 2 B R A RIHCSPLET 32 — 3
% 3R 1% % ([Xin Procurementt? s |) + BARKSZ
— BRI MEFEMALZER DA — Xin
Procurement ° HCSPLTy AR ¥T N3 st M A 32 2
B BR 2 @ New Century International Pte. Ltd.
(INew Century International] ) 2 & & °
New Century International Il 7 & & &% %t &£ &
BEREE (MUY ARRTARTESR
HCSPLEE ) 2 R B2 &% H - REXin
Procurementif & © A& B R HCSPLA Rl A
Xin ProcurementZ 51% 5% 499% /% A # 25 ° 7
ZETLF_AZ+N\B - KEEMHCSPL
Yz B 7 Xin Procurement 2 %8 5P 24901 25 & %
RE120,000% 7T (185 770618,000/&7T) Z
R EFZ - R{EA7,126560E T ([WES
H]) - WEEE 2R EHAR A RHCSPLE
TARE%R7,1265608 TZHABRERX
o RIBEETKE - REERF A Xn
ProcurementZ 75%# # -+ i HCSPLA# A &
PR 250 o BB EMARA - WEEIERE
N—IEEFTERNKNESRIE - WEEEZF1B
ER-ZTT+LHE—A -+t ABAZARBBK
N E -
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36. FAEALXRS ()

(b)

(©

(d)

On 20 February 2004, Xin Procurement entered into a
supply agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with HCSPL
whereby Xin Procurement was appointed as a supplier of
HCSPL for the supply of certain office equipment and
office supplies, machinery, machinery parts, lubricating oil
and bunkerage for vessels. The Supply Agreement remains
valid after the change of the Group's interest in Xin
Procurement on 28 February 2007. By virtue of the
interests of the parents of Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng Wee
Keat in HCSPL, the transactions contemplated under the
Supply Agreement constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sale of office equipment and office supplies were made
at the price equivalent to 10/9 times the cost incurred by
the Group. Sale of machinery, parts, stores for the
upkeeping of vessels, necessary victuals for the crew,
lubricating oil and bunkerage for the operation of the
vessels and appointment of surveyors and technical
consultants for the vessels were made at the price
equivalent to 100/98 times the cost incurred by the
Group. During the current year, Xin Procurement made
sales to HCSPL amounting to HK$2,791,000 (2006:
HK$17,688,000).

Pursuant to the Xin Procurement Agreement, HCSPL had
advanced funds to Xin Procurement as working capital. At
31 March 2007, the outstanding balance owed by Xin
Procurement to HCSPL was HK$644,000. The terms of
the advance are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

During the year, HCSPL made advances of HK$2,857,000
(2006: HK$27,850,000) to Xin Procurement. At 31 March
2007, the outstanding balance owed by Xin Procurement
to HCSPL amounted to HK$48,241,000 (2006:
HK$25,704,000), including dividend payable of
HK$17,757,000 (2006: Nil) which is unsecured, interest—
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

(b)

©

(d)

RZTEZTMFE_HA=+H - Xin Procurement
BIHCSPLET s — i FE Wk (TR B E]) -
I+ Xin Procurement® # & {E AHCSPL{ &
ETRAEXERNLAERAM  RFEBHFE
FAz#es  BBTH - #hRMREZftE
o HERER _TESLF A=+ N\BE
N 52 B A Xin Procurement 2 #E 25 % &) 1 11 24
B BIELMBANE14AE - EREERE
EREREREZRXIRHCSPLZ 2 - 1R
BEHREBZBETIRIBRAAF ZFHE

HERAEZRERBRAZTAMZEBERBAERN
REBEL ZKAZ10/915 o HE IR FH
e BEHERBIKE  THEME  #
BRAEBREEMBEMBERTST AR - #
AR AR ARFHREENSMER
MEMEBREEREAEBMEE XA L
100/98f% « RANEE K » Xin Procurementd]
HCSPLZ S5 & %8 42,791,000 T (ZZF X
F : 17,688,000 T) °

B Xin Procurementi# % + HCSPLENE S T
Xin ProcurementfE R & EE R - RZTZT £
F=H=+—H ’ Xin Procurement#% R HCSPL
2 EARERE R F644,0008TT o B2 IKK
RS mRMTEE25 -

RAFEE R - HCSPLE 2,857,000/ 7T (=
T T XN F : 27,850,000/ 5t ) F Xin
Procuremente R=—ZEE+F=A=+—H "
Xin Procurement# K HCSPLY MR E B &8 5
48,241,000 7T (ZZTT/NF : 25,704,000
TT)  BIEEMNIRE17,757,0008 T (=2 F
T ZEFEDEERR  REREE
N o

/

e
G

s

1M
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

36. EREALRS (&)

116

(e)

®

®

(h)

)

During the year, a management fee of HK$600,000 (2006:
HK$580,000) was charged by HCSPL in respect of certain
administrative services rendered to the Group. The
management fee was determined between the Group and
HCSPL.

During the year, HCSPL reimbursed HK$420,000 (2006:
HK$100,000) to the Group in respect of certain
administrative expenses paid by the Group on behalf of
HCSPL.

During the year, the Group reimbursed expenses of
HK$43,000 (2006: HK$188,000) to HCSPL in respect of
certain administrative expenses paid by HCSPL on behalf
of the Group.

During the year, HCSPL paid HK$1,584,000 (2006:
HK$2,255,000) to certain of the Group's suppliers on
behalf of the Group in respect of its purchases of office
equipment and office supplies, machinery, machinery parts,
lubricating oil and bunkerage.

During the year, Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd., a wholly—
owned subsidiary of HCSPL, paid HK$36,206,000
(2006:HK$29,283,000) to certain of the Group's suppliers
on behalf of the Group in respect of its purchases of
office equipment and office suppliers, machinery,

machinery parts, lubricating oil and bunkerage.

Huang Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of Vision Century, has undertaken to the
Company, to provide continuing financial support to the
Group so as to enable the Group to continue its day—to—
day operations as a viable going concern notwithstanding
any present or future financial difficulties experienced by
the Group up to 31 October 2008.

(e)

®

®

(h)

FA - HCSPLRHRETAERB 2 ETEER
B ELE & 600,0008 T (ZEZTXF ¢
580,000 L) r EHEEER AL BN
HCSPLEEE -

FN - HCSPLEE AR S BAR R HCSPLE M2 & T
TR AAEBEE420,0008 T (ZEE
7N4F 1 100,000 7T) ©

ERN - AEBERHCPIREAER SN ZE
F17H 7 X M HCSPL{E 38 2 H 43,000/ 7T (=
ZTNF ¢ 188,000 7T) °

FA - HCSPLEA A S B B B I 1 = iR 1 S
NEMM S BT R R

REASEAAEEE THER M

1,584,000/ T (ZEZ /N F : 2,255,000/
JT) °©
FA > HCSPLZ & & M B 2 7] Huang

Procurement Pte. Ltd. Zt A 52 B BE B 9 A E &%
BRFAEAM e BWRTH - ek
M REEAEEMASES THEFSN
36,206,000/ 7T (ZZZ /X4 : 29,283,000/
JT) °

Vision CenturyZ B # # R 22 7] Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited 2 [A] 48 A A] & 7 -
EBZ-_TZENF+A=T—BILHHE &
BB TAKRBEMHIE UEAEEER
HEMBRR AR HBRER - &8
HBERBEEMMOATZISERE -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

36.

# © M B

ZEEtLtFZHA=+—H

Rl 5

31 March 2007

FREALX S (8

(k) Xin Procurement has provided corporate guarantee to a
bank in respect of banking facilities granted to HCSPL of
principal amount up to S$9,860,000 (equivalent to
HK$50,779,000). At at 31 March 2007, HCSPL did not
utilise the banking facilities.

(I) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Short term employee benefits %2 #1& & 18 7
B B2 12 A
AR D B BT 2 T3k

Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

Total compensation paid to ~ X[ FEEEE
key management personnel Ak B Z & i 4 58

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the financial statements.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

37

(k) Xin Procurement2 StHCSPLEE R B & %
9,860,000% 7T (4857 50,779,000/ 7T) 2 &
TRER—BRTREARER - R_ZT
+&=HF=+—H ' HCSPLI & &) F {E ] iR
TRLE ©

() "EBEZTEEEEKEFHM :

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
1,340 1,340

52 52

- 380

1,392 1,772

EREEMecE—THBEARYBRE
BizES ©

MEEREEBRBEREE

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances and short term time deposits, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, loan from a minority shareholder,
amount due to a minority shareholder and convertible notes.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable
and accounts and bills payable, which arise directly from its
operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

AEBZEIESRTABRREMRITAERLE
HEMER  RRTREMER - — 28K
REHZ2ER BN D BARRRIE LA # K
EE-UFERIAZIZEANNIAAEEZE
SE -AKERZBREMSBEERAE - HlW0
RUEESERRENEZRILENREER  ME
EEENEEEPEL

EOEFER  ARE-ERTIMEERTAER
BZHE -

11
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37.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

7. UHEBREERRERBEER (8)

118

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates is minimal since the interest rates of all of the Group's
borrowings are fixed.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures in United States
dollars, Singapore dollars and Malaysia Ringgit. Such exposures
arise from the Group's procurement business. During the year
under review, the Group did not issue any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control. The credit risk of the Group's
other financial assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

AEEeRMTAELAZETEZRRANRER - 5b
ERk EERREADESER EFSEHN
TiHREEZFRRZER - BEADT -

A 2= @k

MR AEEAR D EFRTREEN KRR - Bt
AEEARZzTHNXEBRABRBMTRE -

SNEE L B

AEERHERT MK TRFRATEZRS
EEER - ZFRREEAKECRERK - N
EEFER - AN EYEL LB A ETER
E®MIAE-

FE Rk

AEBRERAMEBAEZIF=ZTRS - A%
EZBRAHEREEPNETEECMABRERY
RETEERERF ° i - BRRFEHRTIIZ
SERERE  MAREZZERARITEK -
RYSFARBAREENL BB EIRSM
FARBREEEEERITERILAEZER
TRHEES RAKEEMEREE (BRARS
FReFEEY MELZEERRME  A&EZ
EERRASTEOMEL - &= AREFNZ
HTAZKEE -

MR ASBERERAMEBAZELE=TKS
WHAREEA R
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued) 37. BKEKREEBZERBE (&)
Liquidity risk REBESER
The Group's objective is to ensure adequate funds to meet AEBEZEERERAERHESABRNEL SR
commitments associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows BEMBAE FAEERFSEEETIEER
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. TmE e

38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 38. KEBKRSER
(@) On 17 April 2007, HCSPL exercised its right to convert @ RZZTEZLFMA++EH - HCSPLIT{E E ##

the New Convertible Note of principal amount of
HK$7,126,560 into 41,920,941 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.17
per share. The conversion resulted in an increase in share
capital and share premium account of HK$419,000 and
HK$6,707,000, respectively.

(b) On 30 April 2007 and 30 May 2007, 3,072,000 and
1,024,000 share options were exercised by the directors
of the Company, respectively, at an exercise price of
HK$0.23 per share. Further details are disclosed in note
30 to the financial statements.

(b)

Mo ZBRBRESRITETL  ABAEE
7,126,560/ 7T Z T A MR B 5 /41,920,941
BEREMECOIBITIARA LB - 218
HBEBEHRARKRHDRER D 55 M
419,000/ 7T } 6,707,000/ 7T °

R-ZEE+tFNA=ZFTAR-EZTLFAHA
=-+H - 3,072,000 & 1,024,00017 & iz &
ERARAAESERTERESRO2IB LT
o E—HHBRUBREMTI0ORKE -
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38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued) 38. HFEH®BSEE(#)
(c) On 20 June 2007, the Company entered into (i) a (0 RZFETLFARAZTH  ARAR{EES

conditional placing agreement with Interchina Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) in relation to the placing by
the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, of the Company's
convertible notes with principal amount up to
HK$100,000,000 (the “Notes”) to independent third
parties (the "Placing Agreement”). The Notes are
convertible into new shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.28 per share. Upon exercise in
full of the Notes with principal amount of
HK$100,000,000, 357,142,857 new shares will be issued,
representing 68.6% of the existing issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the Placing Agreement;
and (ii) a conditional option agreement with Vision Century
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to grant
to Vision Century an option exerciseable during the option
period to subscribe for convertible notes to be issued by
the Company with principal amount up to
HK$100,000,000 (the “New Vision Century Notes") at
consideration of HK$10 (the “Option Agreement”). The
terms of the New Vision Century Notes will be identical
to those of the Notes, as disclosed above. Among other
things, completion of the Placing Agreement and the
Option Agreement is inter-conditional and subject to the
approval of the Placing Agreement, the Option Agreement
and the issue of the Notes and the New Vision Century
Notes by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming special general meeting to be held on
6 August 2007.

BFHEBERAR(BRERED T —BEEKH
REHE NEEHEEREBREAZTIZ
H% - REARSTERZ 100,000,000/ 7T 2 &
RAABRBRER([REB]) TZEBIE=H
(EEHmZE]) - ERAURNTRERETR
028BTLHBRBARABZFRG - EXE R
100,000,000 7T 2 A #2 iR R 15 42 2 BT
% RRRHEITA 357,142,857 K
> HERARBIREEHZAHZEAD
1T 2 68.6% : (i) Vision Century&]
VBB REERERZE  BREARRER
{4 R B % F Vision Century— BEEAZ4E - 1M
Vision Century#R bt Pl FE BB AR EHARE A0 - 1T
BRELNRBAAAMEBETASERS
100,000,000 7T 2 7] #2 iz 4% ([ #7 #9 Vision
CenturyR# 1) - RER10E T ([HERER
@) o I EXPTHE - Fr#YVision CenturyR
BZBEREREZGRER - EREHRE
B REHERERERRAGFRLERT
BAAEE  WEFGARAIBURRR_Z
ZE+ENARNBRAIZARAREREIAE
EHEREHZE  BEREBZERBETERR
¥ Vision CenturyEE & F AJEE -

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. Hit B 3% R
The financial statements were approved and authorised for EEgRN_EELF AT HARERT KR
issue by the board of directors on 25 July 2007. R T o
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